a1 U B PR

Superb Summit International

SUPERB SUMMIT INTERNATIONAL
TIMBER COMPANY LIMITED

7y e B B AR SE AT PR

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
O P2 S RE R 5 2 A R 23 7))

(Stock Code R fR5% : 01228)

Interim Report IR

2009



CONTENTS
B &

Consolidated Income Statement

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management Discussion and Analysis

Disclosure of Additional Information

Corporate Information

A WER

FARZEBRAREK

A BN EmER

RAEREER

FARERER

RAMBHRRME

EHE T wm R

Hi &R 2 R

NEER

1

89

94

99




CONSOLIDATED INCOME
STATEMENT

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

The Board of Directors (the “Board” or “Directors”) of Superb
Summit International Timber Company Limited (the “Company”)
is pleased to present the unaudited consolidated results of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the
six months ended 30 June 2009 (“the Period”). The unaudited
consolidated results have been reviewed by the Company’s
audit committee (the “Audit Committee”).
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Six months ended 30 June
HERA=THLAEAR

2009 2008
—EENE —EEN\F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEZ)
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
i FTEx FHET
Turnover =] 4 188,558 264,955
Cost of sales $HE PR (175,693) (222,495)
Gross profit EF 12,865 42,460
Other income Hr A 6 94,204 918
Other gains and losses H s ke 7 330,793 (6,501)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAX (9,821) (11,206)
Administrative expenses THHAX (29,905) (29,256)
Other operating expenses H &S (60,189) (43,729)
Profit/(loss) from operations EER(B18) 8 337,947 (47,314)
Finance costs BT BRAR 9 (13,496) (19,004)
Profit/(loss) before tax BEADER, (B18) 324,451 (66,318)
Income tax expenses s 10 (755) (129)
Profit/(loss) for the period RERERF (BE) 323,696 (66,447)
Attributable to: AT ALER
Owners of the Company NEVEA A 214,224 (65,505)
Non-controlling interests FEEHE R 109,472 (942)
323,696 (66,447)
Dividend % & 11 - -
Earnings/(loss) per share HERARER A
attributable to the owners EL TR
of the Company for the period AR,/ (BE)
Earnings/(loss) per share SRAERN,/(BE) 12
Basic AR HK 0.88 centsi#l (HK 0.37 cents&1l)
Diluted i N/ATRE A N/AZ i




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

Six months ended 30 June
BERA=THLEAER

2009 2008
—EENE ZTENF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEZ)
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FHET
Profit/(loss) for the period AHRER, (BE) 323,696 (66,447)
Translation differences on BINEE 2B A
overseas operations 6,739 231,042
Unrealised gain on available-for-sales  AltHELRMEE
financial assets REBRW = - 18
Total comprehensive income AHAEEZEBALTE SNB
for the period, net of tax 330,435 164,613
Total comprehensive income ITALTEGEZ2EBALE
attributable to:
Owners of the Company UNCIE 2N 215,031 97,445
Non-controlling interests FEIR IR 115,404 67,168
330,435 164,613




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

AT 30 JUNE 2009 RZZTZEAFERA=TH
30 June 31 December
2009 2008
—EEhE —TENF
AAZ+H +=ZA=+—8
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (fEE%)
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
i FEx FHET
ASSETS BE
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Owner-occupied leasehold XA InHEER
interest in land 18 51,372 51,413
Property, plant and equipment W - R R 15 167,032 184,154
Goodwill RS 14 - -
Biological assets EYEE 16 3,565,119 3,227,017
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 3,783,523 3,462,584
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 18 81,904 96,486
Owner-occupied leasehold ¥TER A ER#ER
interest in land 13 572 984
Trade receivables Y E SRE 19 87,368 107,863
Prepayments, deposits and BAFE FIek
other receivables H Al R W8 72,646 74,541
Assets of disposal group classified DA EHREZ
as held for sale HERBCEE 21 90,251 -
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEEH 222,010 54,582
Amount due from non-controlling JRE M5 2R Il A 25 TR
interests 20 326,385 325,111
Total current assets REBEELE 881,136 659,567
TOTAL ASSETS EEHE 4,664,659 4,122,151
LIABILITIES =
CURRENT LIABILITIES REaE
Trade payables BNE KA 22 35,433 43,481
Tax payables FERBIE 36,330 36,547
Liabilities of disposal group classified 248 A#H{EHE 2
as held for sale TEEECEE 21 436,031 -
Other payables and accruals Hofth JE A FRIE 2 FE SR IE 205,950 191,823
Interest-bearing bank loans - due & ERITER - —FREH
within one year 23 - 406,780
Convertible note payable [NEIEAY &S 28 45,856 109,965
Total current liabilities REEELAE 759,600 788,596
TOTAL LIABILITIES SEHEE 759,600 788,596
TOTAL NET ASSETS FEEHE 3,905,059 3,338,555




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

AT 30 JUNE 2009

30 June 31 December
2009 2008
—EEZhE ZTENF
AH=+H +=ZA=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RBER) (BEZ)
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B zE FTERT FET
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARRE

Share capital [N 26 276,290 234,523
Reserves e 2,716,391 2,302,058

Total equity attributable to the NAEBAEGERBE
owners of the Company 2,992,681 2,536,581
Non-controlling interests FEE IR 912,378 796,974
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 3,905,059 3,333,555




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

Attributable to the owners of the company
PEEEIN L

Share
capital

B
HKS000
TEn
(Note 26)
(Hzt26)

Foreign

Share revaluation exchange

reserve

HERE
HK$'000
Thn

Non-

controlling
interests

HEH
i

HK$'000

TR

At 1 January 2009 (Aucited)

Profit for the period
Translation difference on
overseas operation

234,523

269,043

807

796,974
100,472

5,932

Total comprenensive income
for the period
Cancellation of share option

Employee share option benefits

Avising upon conversion of

convertible notes into new shares

Issue of placing shares
Transfer of retained profits

6,667
35,100

807

115,404

At 30 June 2009 (Unaudited)

RAZTH (REER)

276,290 1,313,590°

269,850"

912,378 3,906,059




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 BHE_ZZNFAAA=+HILEAR
Attributable to the owners of the company
PEE PN
Property ~ Foreign ~ Share Conversion Investment  Statutory Non-
Share  Share revaluation exchange  options  Warrant note equity revaluation  reserve  Retained controlling
capital ~premium  reserve  reserve  reseve  reserve  reserve  reserve fund  profits Total interests Total
IxEH BhE AR TRRZE RE  iEdR $4
RE BRERE  RE AEEE  BE BREE BEGEE EGEE B¢ REWM & BE &
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000
Tén TEr Th TR T TR Th T T TR T T Tin
[restated) restated) ~ (restatec] ~ (restated]  (restated)
(&51) (85) (&%) (&F) (E5)
At 1 January 2008 (Audted) RZFENE-F-B 176299 667,977 27% 136625 107047 15148 63078 - 4678 1383587 2567129 974579 3531708
(as restated] (i&H) (&5
Loss for the perod THRER - - - - - - - - - (R0 (@505 (2 (E6447)
Tranglaton ciference on ﬁ?\\%iﬁﬁﬁﬁ%@
0verseas operafion - - - 16,98 - - - - - - 162932 68110 281,042
Unrealised gain on avalible-forsales A HEARERY
financil assets FEBhE - - - - - - - 18 - - 18 - 18
Total comprehensive income for FHEREkAEE
the period - - - 1629% - - - 18 - (5505 9745 67168 164618
Evercise of share options fIiERE w2 - - 15y - - - - 18 24 - U
Exercise of warrants e 21 185 - - - (19) - - - - 187 - 187
Transfer of retained profs SRR - - - - - - - - % %) - - -
Employe share option benefts [EEERERT - - - - B2 - - - - - B3 - B8
At 30 June 2008 (Unaudited) RZEE\ERA=TA
(REEH) 176760 6702050 279 2957 18760 15120 63073 18 4668 1310517 2690484 1041747 3732231
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of - N EREBEEREZAVBERIBRE 2L /I:l\
HK$2,716,391,000 (30 June 2008: HK$2,513,722,000 as restated, % #%2,716,391,0008 T( Z T T /\F ~
HK$1,818,661,000 as previously reported) in the consolidated = + B :2,513,722,000 T &£ & ﬁ‘J '
statement of financial position. 1,818,661,000/8 7T * RATZF) °
Notes: Hiat -
(@) The share premium of the Group includes the premium arising (a) EBEZBROHEEREARNBRITIVIREEZE
from the new issue of shares of the Company. & -
(b) The subsidiaries are required to transfer 10% of their profit after (b) KMBAREBHEBREIHSTEMFEZR

taxation calculated in accordance with the PRC accounting
regulations to the statutory reserve fund until such reserve reaches
50% of the registered capital of the respective subsidiaries, upon
which any further appropriation will be at the recommendation of
the directors of the subsidiaries. Such reserve may be used to
reduce any losses incurred by the subsidiaries or be capitalised
as paid-up capital of the subsidiaries.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009
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Six months ended 30 June
BERA=THLEAER

2009 2008
—EEhE —TENF
(unaudited) (unaudited)
(REER) (REEXZ)
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTET FEL
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEK
Profit/(loss)before tax BREAE I (B51R) 324,451 (66,318)
Adjustments for: R
Finance costs B AR AR 13,496 19,004
Interest income F B WA (1,454) (351)
Depreciation of property, plant M - BEREENE
and equipment 10,771 22,716
Amortisation of owners-occupied EX AL hAERS 2 HH
leasehold interest in land 572 430
Impairment loss on available- A EEREE 2 RERE
for-sales financial assets - 6,501
Gain arising from changes EMEENFELESRME
in fair value less estimated point- HERKAEEZ
of-sale costs of biological assets g (330,793) -
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEWE  BMELZEZ
plant and equipment (hez) /B (43) 2,778
Impairment loss recognised IENE 5 RIB®RA
in respect of trade receivables BERE 13,626 -
Impairment loss recognised FhE M EWRIBRER 2R E
in respect of other receivables &8 110 -
Write-down of property, plant R - BER&RE
and equipment 11,302 3,228
Write-down of inventories MRFEE#EFE
to net realisable value 4,092 -
Deficit on revaluation EHEAELRIEFZBA
of leasehold land and buildings 804 -
Share-based payments expenses AR BERMSRZHE 23,616 33,238
Write-back of property BEWE - BB REE
plant and equipment (88,935) -
Reversal of impairment loss FEAMERRIB 2 REBERD
in respect of other receivable (2,768) -




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

Six months ended 30 June
BERA=THLEAER

2009 2008
—EEhE —TENF
(Unaudited) (unaudited)
(REER) (REEXZ)
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEx FEL
OPERATING CASH FLOW EELSEBACRERERE
BEFORE MOVEMENTS
IN WORKING CAPITAL (21,153) 21,226
Decrease in inventories FERL 10,490 4,705
Decrease/(increase) in EWE HERER D,/ (Em)
trade receivables 5,485 (58,963)
Decrease in prepayments, BARIE - fI& RkHM
deposits and other receivables & L R SR D 3,354 5,132
Decrease in biological assets EMEERD - 11,509
Decrease in trade payables BNESERERD (4,647) (8,869)
Increase/(decrease) in other Ho A B 5 3RO R B RTREE N, (R )
payables and accruals 27,694 (19,862)
CASH FROM/(USED IN) REERFE/(FFR)BRE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 21,223 (45,122)
Taxes (paid)/refund (Bff)/REFHE (972) 4,755
NET CASH FROM/(USED IN) REEBHE /(A REFHE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 20,251 (40,367)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETH
Proceeds from disposal of property HEWE « BE MR E
plant and equipment FTS %A 4,492 -
Acquisition of property, plant WEEME - BEREE
and equipment (9,790) (9,154)
Interest received BUFIE 1,454 351
NET CASH USED IN RETHFIARSEHE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (3,844) (8,803)




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

Six months ended 30 June
BERA=THLEAER

2009 2008
—EERE —EENE
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEZ)
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHExT FHL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEEE
Net proceeds from issue of BIOIRERMAFRIEFE
placing share 163,463 -
Proceeds from exercise of I{ERERIERS FUR
share option - 2,485
Proceeds from issue of exercise TERREZR SRR
of warrants - 187
Cash on subsidiary classified DEABELEZINBRAT RS
as held for sale (7) -
New bank loans raised HIERITER - 19,125
Interest paid BAFE (12,252) (19,004)
NET CASH FROM BRMETBHRERSTFE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 151,204 2,793
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) ReRRESEEEBEZ
IN CASH AND CASH i,/ CRd)BE
EQUIVALENTS 167,611 (46,377)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS H#zREeRELEEER
AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD 54,582 138,205
Effect of foreign exchange rate EREFFH I TE
changes (183) (10,085)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS H&RzBREeRELEEER
AT END OF PERIOD 222,010 81,743
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES BeRBESEBBEEHDIT
OF CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS 222,010 81,743




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 BE-_TTAFAA=TEIANEA

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as
an exempted company with limited liability and its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of registered office
and principal place of business of the Company is Units
2804-2806, 28th Floor, China Merchants Tower, 168-200
Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”). Other than those subsidiaries
established in the People’s Republic of China (“the PRC”)
whose functional currency is Renmibi (“RMB”) and the
subsidiary incorporated in Macau whose functional currency
is Macau Patacas (“MOP”), the functional currency of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively known as the
“Group”) is HK$.

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set
out in note 17 to the financial statements. There were no
significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal
activities during the six months ended 30 June 2009 (the
“Period”).

MATERIAL FUNDAMENTAL UNCERTAINTIES
IN RESPECT OF GOING CONCERN

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors have given careful consideration to the future
liquidity of the Group in light of its operating loss before
tax of approximately HK$6,342,000 after adjustment of gain
arising from changes in fair value less estimated point-of-sale
costs of biological assets. Notwithstanding the above, the
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis, the validity of which depends upon the
success of the measures to improve the Group’s profitability
and cash flows, to obtain finance from other resources, to
secure the necessary facilities from its existing bankers, and
the success of assessing the worst impacts arising from
the failure of repayment of certain bank loans.

Based on the following reasons, the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

2. MATERIAL FUNDAMENTAL UNCERTAINTIES
IN RESPECT OF GOING CONCERN (Continued)

(i)

(if)

On 10 July 2009, the Company had entered into an
agreement with the Group’s non-controlling interests,
Superview International Limited (“Superview”), in relation
to the proposed transactions which, among other
matters, included (i) acquisition from Superview, its 30%
equity interest in Green & Good Group Limited (“Green
& Good”) and (ii) releasing the counter guarantee given
by the Group in favour of an independent third party
guarantor in respect of the bank loan of the Group’s
subsidiary, £ 2 mAH @EIEAR QT (“G&G Wood”)
and (iii) disposal of 67.7% equity interest in G&G Wood
held by the Group’s subsidiary (“G&G Wood Target
Share”), Leeka Wood Co., Ltd (“Leeka Wood”), to
Superview. The directors of the Group are of the view
that upon completion of the proposed transactions,
the debt structure of the Group will be significantly
improved through replacing the short-term bank loans by
redeemable convertible notes issued by the Company.
Furthermore, the Group will divest its investment in
loss-making business and consolidate its resources
on the development of woodland business.

Leeka Wood, a subsidiary of the Group, currently owns
about 3.5 million cubic meter of timber resources
covering forest land of about 316,000 Chinese mu(&) in
the PRC. Upon completion of the proposed transactions,
Green & Good will become wholly owned by the
Group and Green & Good will be in a better position
to negotiate with third party for future development
of its operation and business. The acquisition of the
remaining 30% interests in Green & Good is also in
the best interest of the shareholders of the Company
since all the operation and business decision of
Green & Good could be made effectively without
any need of taking into account the interests of the
non-controlling interests. The directors believe that
the timber business has vast potential in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”) and the profitability of the
Group will be improved in future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

2. MATERIAL FUNDAMENTAL UNCERTAINTIES

IN RESPECT OF GOING CONCERN (Continued)

(i)  G&G Wood, a subsidiary of Green & Good, is principally
engaging in manufacture, distribution and sales of
flooring product, has been substantially inactive and has
contributed a loss to the Group. By disposing the G&G
Wood Target Share, the financial position and liquidity
of the Group may be improved and the resources of
the Group may be efficiently re-allocated.

(iv) By disposing the G&G Wood Target Share to Superview
and releasing the counter guarantee given by Green
& Good to a third party guarantor in respect of the
bank loan of G&G Wood, the bank loan of G&G Wood
will be removed from the Group and the Group’s
contingent liability arising from counter guarantee will
be discharged. This can greatly improve the financial
position of the Group.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as
“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
basis except for leasehold land and buildings, biological
assets and certain financial instruments, which are measured
at revalued amount or fair values, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgments about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgments made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and estimates with a significant risk
of material adjustment in the next period are discussed
in note 35.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)

Application of new and revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards

In the current period, the Group has applied, the following
amendments and interpretations (“INTs”) (herein collectively
referred to as “New HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”),
which are or have become effective.

Improvements to HKFRSs May 2008
Improvements to HKFRSs April 2009

HKFRS 2 Share based Payment-Vesting
Conditions and Cancellations

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosure

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements

HKAS 23 Borrowing Costs (Revised)

HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and
HKAS 1 Puttable Financial Instruments
and obligations Arising on Liquidation

HK (IFRIC) 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes

HK (IFRIC) 9 Reassessments of Embedded
Derivatives and HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement

HK (IFRIC) 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in

a Foreign Operation
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED e EHRRE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 HE-_TZNFNA=Z1+BHIEXEA
3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. EEEFHBEK (&)
Basis of preparation (Continued) mMBEXE (&)
Application of new and revised Hong Kong Financial JERFTET RACNE 5] & BRI &
Reporting Standards (Continued) ER (%)
The adoption of the New HKFRSs had no material effect M BB BmE ER SRR &
on how the results and financial position for the current EWRA GBI L —SHHB¥E
or prior accounting periods have been prepared and MBS RR W B ERNTE - FHit -
presented. Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has EEMEL RTEAFA R o
been required.
As at the date of this report, HKICPA issued the following RARERH  BEGHMASEEM
New HKFRSs that have not been effective. However, the TOHMARER 2 FFEBTFREER -
Group has not early applied these new and revised standards A EEWARRFEALEENARE
or interpretations (“HK(IFRIC)-INTs”) that have been issued A EA 2 M8 18 & R A B BT AT RS 5T
but are not yet effective as at the date of this report. ERlZ2EB( 5 (BB BHRERE
ZEg)-REl -
HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvement to HKFRSs May 2008 RS \FRABRARBHRE RN Lok
HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs April 2009? ZEENEMAEBBBREEL M2
HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate BRGIENSTR(BET)  GARBUERGAYH
Consolidated Financial Statements® BiEE
HKAS 39 (Amendments) Fligable hedged items® EHENER 39 (53]) BEREAERS
HKFRS 1 (Revised) First-time Adoptions of HKFRS® EENBRERUFIR(AB) ERROBRTHRE
e
HKFRS 2 (Amendments) Share-based Payments— Company ERUBREENER () URHAEREZNF-
Cash-Settled Share based DARSEENRD
Payment Transactions® BERMFZRS®
HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations® BRENBREENZIN(BET) EHAH
HK(IFRIC)-INT 9 and Embedded Derivatives* TH(ERUBREAEZEE)  MBETA
HKAS39 (Amendments) FORREBGHENZ30%
(31
HK(IFRIC)-INT 17 Distributions of Non- cash Assets AR(ERGBREREZEE) WEEADRERS
to Owners? E17% BB
HK(IFRIC)-INT 18 Transfer of Assets from Customers® AE(ERTBRERREEE) HIRPLEAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)

Application of new and revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRSs”) (Continued)

! Amendments to HKFRS 5, effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009
and 1 January 2010 as appropriate.

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2009.

4 Effective for annual periods ending on or after 30 June
2009.

5 Effective for transfers of assets from customers received on
or after 1 July 2009

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2010.

The application of HKFRS 3(revised) may affect the
accounting for business combination for which the acquisition
date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting
period beginning on or after 1 July 2009, HKAS 27(revised)
will affect the accounting treatment for changes in a
parents ownership interest in a subsidiary. The directors
of the Company anticipate that the application of the
other revised standards, amendments or interpretations
will have no material impact on the result and financial
position of the Group.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved when
the Company has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from
it activities. All intra-group transactions, balances income
and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the period are included in the consolidated income statement
from the effective dates of acquisition or up to the effective
dates of disposal, as appropriate.

@

FTEETHER®)

REREE 7)

JE A #T 5T R 4215 5] &8 B 75 3R &5

ERI([ B EREER]) (&)

1 BBV BREERNESRZIBFTR-FE
ZNFLtA—HzEHABZFERRE
HERR o

2 R-BEEAF+A-—HBE T —TF—
A—BURER) k2 %MKz FEEHM
R o

B R-_ZEZNFLA—BSR2EBREZF
EHEIMAER -

4 R-IBBAFNA=ZTHI 2 EBERY
FEEIR AR o

5 RZZBEZANFE+A—BH B KREEE
BEPZEEEM -

6 R-E—ZTF—H—HSl 2 EHBRZF
EHEIMAER -

EREEH B RS ERNEIR(KLEFT)
AR ERBRANAR _TTNAFLA—
Bk kMABzBEFERS HEMAG
K2R ZEKBEHZERT A MAA
SR ERE2TR (BB BFET AR
RMBAR EERESZS 2 ETKE
B RREREH BAEGBEETE
Al BRI BB Y EE 2 RE RV BN
MTIEHEEARTE -

REEE

HEMBBRRBEARRIDAESZ
ER(EMBRAZMBE®RE - EAF
EREHRER MR EEBHRIAL
HEBH RIS - AESIE G4 -
SEETRARMAZRS - BHREZR

EHABAREL ZHBARZ EEHR
WRAERBRFHFEREERA L
(RIBERME) » HALFREKERA °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by other members of
the Group.

Business combinations

The acquisition of businesses is accounted for using the
purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is measured
at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange,
of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity
instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the
business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the conditions
for recognition under HKFRS 3 Business Combinations
are recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date,
except for non-current assets (or disposal groups) that
are classified as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS
5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations, which are recognised and measured at fair
value less costs to sell.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset
and initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost
of the business combination over the Group’s interest in
the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities recognised. If, after reassessment,
the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
exceeds the cost of the business combination, the excess
is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The interest
of non-controlling interests in the acquiree is initially
measured at the non-controlling interests’ proportion of
the net fair value of the assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities recognised.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control
exists when the Group has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights
that presently are exercisable are taken into account.

@

FESHBER &)

REEEE)

BREH  BRWBATZHHRRIE
HA R LA H B S BOR S E bR B
DEFERER—H -

EBEH

WIEEBRBRBEEAR - WERAR
AR B B 5 [ A 4 E R K U 4 b
Pria TEE - PTEESAEABURAT
BOTBRATAZ AFEARE  MEXH
EHENERRERATE - HEEE
IS mEEREIN XA 6 TR T HE
RGHZWRBTAIHMNEE  BER
FIARAE HREBERARREEQTE
MR ERRE M RELEAELR
[(FIFLENERBEERDKRILEES
EBIDBRFIFHE ZERBEE(K
HEAR) BRI ZEEERRAFE
HHE X AR REE -

WEAELHEERA/EE  BVHER
RAGHE - ARBIEE A AR H &
BRCHERTHAMNEE  BERIAE
BERAFFEIERZEZRE - HWREHT
f% SFENREET ZARRIEE
BEMSIABBEAFFEZEABLEE
BAGIRRA - B BB N IR
B FERIRERNREIES 2 s - )
FIRIFEFRENCHRBEE  BER
HRBBERAFFEZLLOIFE -

i) -INCIDSE gL f

MEAREEEEH 2 AR - )
EEEAREE RERBZMBRESR
ZRE - MR EEH PR o REF
BIEHE Bt RERAIITEZEER

=g



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

An investments in subsidiaries are consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances and transactions and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only
to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of the net
assets of subsidiaries attributable to interests that are
not owned by the Company, whether directly or indirectly
through subsidiaries, and in respect of which the Group
has not agreed any additional terms with the holders
of those interests which would result in the Group as a
whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the owners of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated income statement
as an allocation of the total comprehensive income for the
period between non-controlling interests and the owners
of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 BE-_TTAFAA=TEIANEA

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Subsidiaries and Non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Where losses applicable to the non-controlling interests
exceed the non-controlling interests in the equity of a
subsidiary, the excess, and any further losses applicable
to the non-controlling interests, are charged against the
Group’s interests except to the extent that the non-controlling
interests has a binding obligation to, and is able to, make
additional investment to cover the losses. If the subsidiary
subsequently reports profits, the Group’s interest is allocated
all such profits until the non-controlling interests’ share
of losses previously absorbed by the Group has been
recovered. Loans from holders of non-controlling interests
and other contractual obligations towards these holders
are presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position depending on the nature
of the liability. In the Company’s statement of financial
position, an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost
less impairment losses, unless the investment is classified
as held for sale (or include in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).

Investments in subsidiaries

The Company’s investments in subsidiaries are stated at
cost less impairment loss, if any.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of business represents
the excess of the cost of a business combination or an
investment in an associate over the Group’s interest in the
net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities of the relevant business at the
date of a acquisitions. Such goodwill is stated of cost less
accumulate impairment losses.

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is presented separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Goodwill (Continued)

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant
cash generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to be benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition. A cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment annually,
and whenever there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial
year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that
financial year. When the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit,
the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then
to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement. An impairment loss for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods. On subsequent disposal of
the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount
of goodwill capitalised is included in the determination of
the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Biological assets

Biological assets comprise forest crop in PRC.

Biological assets are living plants involved in the agricultural
activities of the transformation of biological assets into
agricultural produce for sale or into additional biological
assets. Biological assets and agricultural produce are
measured at fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs at
initial recognition and at the end of each reporting period.
The fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs at the time
of harvest is deemed as the cost of agricultural produce
for further processing, if applicable. If an active market
exists for a biological asset or agricultural produce with
reference to comparable species, growing condition and
expected yield of the crops, the quoted price in that market
is adopted for determining the fair value of that asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Biological assets (Continued)

If an active market does not exist, the Group uses the most
recent market transaction price, provided that there has
not been a significant change in economic circumstances
between the transaction date and the end of the reporting
period, or the market prices for similar assets adjusted
to reflect differences to determine fair values. The gain
or loss arising on initial recognition and subsequent
changes in fair values less estimated point-of-sale costs of
biological assets is recognised in the consolidated income
statement in the period in which it arise. Upon the sale of
the agricultural produce as forestry products, the carrying
amount is transferred to cost of sales in the consolidated
income statement.

Impairment for tangible assets

Impairment tests on assets are subject to impairment tests
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
their carrying amount may not be recoverable. Where the
carrying value of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount
(ie the higher of value in use and fair value less costs to
sell), the asset is written down accordingly.

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the impairment test is carried out
on the asset’s cash-generating unit (ie the lowest group
of assets in which the asset belongs for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows).

Impairment charges are included in the administrative
expenses line item in the consolidated income statement,
except to the extent they reverse income previously
recognised directly in equity.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at
a revalued amount under another accounting standard, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated
as a revaluation increase under that other accounting
standard.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Disposal group held for sales

Disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their
carrying amount will be recovered principally through a
sales transaction rather than through continuing use. This
condition is regards as met only when the sales is highly
probable and disposal group is available for immediate
sale in its present condition. Disposal groups classified
as held for sale are measured at the lower of the disposal
group previous carrying amount and fair value less costs
to sell.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs
of completion and selling expenses.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average costs formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. When inventories are sold,
the carrying amount of those inventories is recognized as
an expense in the period in which the related revenue is
recognized. The amount of any write-down of inventories
to net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or
loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down
of inventories, arising from an increase in net realizable
value, is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expenses in the period in
which the reversal occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 BE-_TTAFAA=TEIANEA

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment held for use in the production
or supply of goods and services, or for administrative
purpose are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Leasehold Land and buildings held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purpose,
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of
revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation
and any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.
Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity such
that the carrying amount does not differ materially from that
which would be determined using fair value. Increases in
valuation are credited to the property revaluation reserve.
Decreases in valuation are first offset against increases
on earlier valuations in respect of the same property and
are thereafter charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. Any subsequent increases are
credited to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income up to the amount previously charged and thereafter
to property revaluation reserve.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated at rates
sufficient to write off their cost net of expected residual
value over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line
basis. The useful lives and residual value are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period. The principal annual rates are as follows:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenances
costs are charged to the consolidated income statement
during the period in which they are incurred.

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

All non-qualifying expenditures and expenses incurred on
other non-qualifying development activities are charged
as expenses to the consolidated income statement in the
period in which such expenses are incurred.

Upon disposal of leasehold buildings, the relevant portion
of the revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous
valuations is released from the property revaluation reserve
to retained profits.

An item of property, plant and equipment is decrecognised
upon disposal when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the different between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included
in the consolidated income statement in the period which
item is derecognized.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment under construction and pending installation and
is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Cost includes the costs of construction of buildings, the
cost of plant and machinery and interest charges arising
from borrowings used to finance these assets during the
period of construction or installation and testing, if any. No
provision for depreciation is made on construction in progress
until such time as the relevant assets are completed and
are available for intended use. When the assets concerned
are brought into use, the costs are transferred to property,
plant and equipment and depreciated in accordance with
the policy as stated in the preceding paragraphs.

Convertible note

Convertible note issued by the Company that contain both
the liability and conversion equity components are classified
separately into respective items on initial recognition.
Conversion equity will be settled by the exchange of a
fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company’s own equity instruments is an
equity instrument. On initial recognition, the fair value of
the liability component is determined using the prevailing
market interest rate of similar non-convertible debts.
The difference between the proceeds of the issue of the
convertible loan note and the fair value assigned to the
liability component, representing the conversion equity for
the holder to convert the convertible note into equity, is
included in equity (convertible note equity reserve).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible note is carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The equity component, represented
by the option to convert the liability component into ordinary
shares of the Company, will remain in convertible note
equity reserve until the conversion option is exercised (in
which case the balance stated in convertible note equity
reserve until the conversion option is exercised (in which
case the balance stated in convertible note equity reserve
will be transferred to share premium).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Convertible note (Continued)

Where the option remains unexercised at the expiry date,
the balance stated in convertible note equity reserve
will be released to the retained profits. No gain or loss
is recognized in consolidated income statement upon
conversion or expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
loan note are allocated to the liability and equity components
in proportion to the allocation of the proceeds. Transaction
costs relating to the equity component are charged
directly to equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability
component are included in the carrying amount of the
liability component and amortised over the period of the
convertible note using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
Consideration paid to reacquire the Company’s own equity
instruments are deducted from equity. No gain or loss is
recognized in consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial Instruments

(1)

Financial assets

Financial assets comprise trade receivables, other
receivables, cash and cash equivalents, and amount
due from non-controlling interests.

The Group classifies its financial assets into one of the
following categories, depending on the purpose for
which the asset was acquired. The Group’s accounting
policy for each category is as follows:

Fair value through profit or loss: This category comprises
the financial assets that have been acquired for the
purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the short-term or
if so designated by management. This category includes
derivatives which are not qualified for hedge accounting.
Debt securities and bank deposits with embedded
derivatives for yield enhancement whose economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to
the host securities and deposits are designated as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
They are carried in the consolidated statement of
financial position at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial Instruments (Continued)

(1)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables: These assets are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. They arise
principally through the provision of goods and services
to customers (trade receivables), but also incorporate
other types of contractual monetary asset. At the
end of each reporting period subsequent to initial
recognition, they are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate method, less any identified
impairment losses.

Held-to-maturity investments: These assets are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturities that the Group’s
management has the positive intention and ability to
hold to maturity. At the end of each reporting period
subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity
investments are measured at amortised cost using
effective interest rate method, less any identified
impairment losses.

Available-for-sale: Non-derivative financial assets not
included in the above categories are classified as
available-for-sale and comprise the Group’s strategic
investments in entities not qualifying as subsidiaries,
associates or jointly controlled entities. They are carried
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
directly in equity. Where a decline in the fair value
of an available-for-sale financial asset constitutes
objective evidence of impairment, the amount of the
loss is removed from equity and recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
For available-for-sale equity investments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by
delivery of such unquoted equity instruments, they
are measured at cost less any identified impairment
losses at the end of each reporting period subsequent
to initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial Instruments (Continued)
(i) Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities comprise trade payables, other
payables and accruals, interest-bearing bank loans
and convertible note payable.

The Group classifies its financial liabilities into one of
two categories, depending on the purpose for which
the liabilities were incurred. The Group’s accounting
policies for each category is as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss has
two subcategories, including financial liabilities held for
trading and those designated at fair value through profit
or loss on initial recognition. At the end of each reporting
period subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are measured at
fair value, with changes in fair value recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income in
the period in which they arise.

Other financial liabilities: Other financial liabilities
include the following items:

° Trade payables and other short-term monetary
liabilities, which are recognised at amortised
cost.

° Bank loans are initially recognised at the amount
advanced net of any transaction costs directly
attributable to the issue of the instrument. Such
interest bearing liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, which ensures that any interest
expense over the period to repayment is at
a constant rate on the balance of the liability
carried in the consolidated statement of financial
position. “Interest expense” in this context includes
initial transaction costs and premium payable on
redemption, as well as any interest or coupon
payable while the liability is outstanding.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED e EHRRME
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 BE—ZTAEAA=TBILNEA

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. EESHHE#E)

Financial Instruments (Continued) EWMIEE)

(iii) Derecognition (iii) AR 1F#EFR
Financial assets are derecognized when the rights EREEWRBCR 2R 2N EmK
to receive cash flows from the assets expire or the SREERERNY  UKEECH
financial assets are transferred and the Group has EeREERER BRI SRR
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of MEH  AeRIIBREREE -
ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of MR ILHERCREER - BEERE
a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s BHEEEAERERCD KR ER
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration RAB LA R R EH Uk e ok B 18 2 42
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or 2 ERBRRE N ERER o

loss that had been recognized directly in equity is
recognized in consolidated income statement.

Financial liabilities are derecognized when the obligation EREAAB T ERERR 3
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, M E WM BlemAaEIRILE
cancelled or expires. The difference between the ReORIEEREHEBECERE
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized HENRERZZENEE RE R
and the consideration paid is recognized in consolidated R o

income statement.

Owner-occupied leasehold interest in land XX AL wHEERS
Interests in leasehold land held for own use under operating BRELHEEREBRAZHEL 2 #
leases represent up-front payments to acquire long-term HIERBARABEAMGRAZMEZ R
interests in lessee-occupied properties. These payments BEBAEINZHE BHESBIEK
are stated at cost and are amortised over the period of RO - W HERRNIREGZEHE
the lease on a straight-line basis to the consolidated BHS I ANGEWEE °

income statement.

Leased assets HEEE

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms EHENGERAG R B2 BREBHE R KR
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards EwEBBAME AR - B S HERHEM
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified g EREMBO EAKERE -

as operating leases.



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leased assets (Continued)
The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to
the consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits received and
receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease
are recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the
lease term on a straight-line basis.

Employee benefits
(i) Retirement benefits scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to the consolidated income
statement as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED e EHRRME
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 BE—ZTAEAA=TBILNEA

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. EESHHE#E)

Employee benefits (Continued) BERH &)

(i) Retirement benefits scheme (Continued) () RIKIEFIZHEI (&)
The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries operating in FERFRLEZWBATETE
the PRC are required to participate in a central pension BASHEMATE T TRNEEY
scheme (the “Central Scheme”) operated by the local FRRARSETEI([FRREE]) o
municipal government in the PRC. The respective Bl 2 & Bl He 75 T BT A e g AR R 5%
local municipal government in the PRC, undertakes to EWBAAIMERRERBEEKRE
assume the retirement benefits obligations of all existing TZERERBEMNEME - ZZEWNBRR]
and future retired staff of these subsidiaries. The only R REEF 2 —FFHIREF
obligation of these subsidiaries with respect to the RETERHATEHRR - BEAHERE
Central Scheme is to meet the required contributions RIBBEFR R B 2R EBELHK
under the Central Scheme. The contributions are FEHREWERRE -

charged to the consolidated income statement as
they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the Central Scheme.

(i) Termination benefits (i) AR5 F
Termination benefits are recognised when, and only DA EBEREARER FERAS
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to FES A SR MY ER 2
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a BB T2 IR 2 BRI - 3%
result of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed LIRS EA T HERR o
formal plan which is with out realistic possibility of
withdrawal.

(iii) Employee entitlements (iii) 1S tE2S
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long EEE=CEBEREMBES IRE
service payment are recognised when they accrue to NI EEBRED  WHEEHE
the employees. A provision is made for the estimated 4% B R B T2 (L BR 7% 1 2= 4k > (& =t
liability for annual leave and long service payment as EBREHRRES S BELEE -

a result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity EEREZRBERS LRI EBER
leave are not recognised until the time of leave. S EURR AR 1S T RESR o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payments
Equity-settled-share based payment transactions

Where share options are awarded to employees, the fair
value of the options at the date of grant is charged to the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period. Non-market vesting conditions are taken
into account by adjusting the number of equity instruments
expected to vest at the end of each reporting period so
that, ultimately, the cumulative amount recognised over
the vesting period is based on the number of options that
eventually vest. Market vesting conditions are factored into
the fair value of the options granted. As long as all other
vesting conditions are satisfied, a charge is made irrespective
of whether the market vesting conditions are satisfied. The
cumulative expense is not adjusted for failure to achieve a
market vesting condition.

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified
before they vest, the increase in the fair value of the options,
measured immediately before and after the modification, is
also charged to the consolidated income statement over
the remaining vesting period.

Where equity instruments are granted to persons other than
employees, the consolidated income statement is charged
with the fair value of goods and services received.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measurement at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from sales of goods are recognised in the
consolidated income statement when goods are delivered and
title has passed or when the significant risks and rewards
of ownership have been transferred to the buyer.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rates applicable which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimates future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that assets net carrying amount.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
rights to receive payment is established.

Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
which will probably result in an outflow of economic benefits
that can be reasonably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, the existence of which will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events, are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Income taxes

Income tax for the period comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in the consolidated income statement except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised directly
in equity, in which case they are recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the period, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period, and any adjustment
to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can
be utilised.

@

IRETHEE @)

&%t

7 53R B 45 Bt 2 45 B0 53 B 0B BB SE B IR
AEREEZED - BEHIERELTH
FAERAMZEDHEHEEKHRA
2 ﬁm%%ﬁZ%%mﬁ&LLm

RZIAHE *ﬁ‘%ﬁ E'JEZE.‘BT’\L\EWZE* o5 g

u%’\Q

BIEATRIE R R A B E R BLA - AR
BEMERALTERA IR EFELZ
BEHEARE  RMEFNARULEFERE
BWEZRBE -

EXHBEERBEIIHEERAR
BUBRR 2EEAELRRREME 2T
FHRNERN 2 ERIEZRMRES -
BERBREENAAREERZHEE
BRABERZRABREMES °

BTETERZAISMERSIN - FRBIET
MEAE KAAEERBEEEER
R KR AT LIRS AR R B A < 3% R
BESNERZMM) B THR - BF
BRBATTHREREZEREE Y
EXRBEEZRARERNBNBHEE
w5 B A2 R R M= 2D 7 &
- MEEERARERKMEEZREHRF—
BEERRAR—BRTEELBWR - ATE
HEAFHREREEZRBHCE 2R
—HRANER K TEHEERBEEEESL
ZHBEREELNREAZHEAD
B-AEFERMZERNRERFUEEZRR
BRMERARARER ZREEBRERE
BAREL ZRENIAEER KA LB
RzBEE IZEERUEEZERHAR—H
BEBRR— R E LR - WIRH
TR TS S 1B S B AR B A 2 B P [ 3
FETHEER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income taxes (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against
deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has
the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income taxes (Continued)

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled

intend to realise the current tax

assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a

net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

or recovered,

Foreign currency

Transactions entered into by Group entities in a currency
other than the currency of the primary economic environment
in which it operates (the “functional currency”) are recorded
at the rates ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign
currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated at
the rates ruling at the end of reporting period. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of unsettled monetary
assets and liabilities are similarly recognised immediately
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
except for foreign currency borrowings qualifying as a
hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation.

Change in the fair value of monetary securities denominated
in foreign currency classified as available-for-sale are
analysed between translation differences resulting from
changes in the amortised cost of the security, and other
changes in the carrying amount of the security. Translation
differences are recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency (Continued)

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets
and liabilities are reported as part of the fair value gain
or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary assets
and liabilities such as equities held at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation
differences on non-monetary financial assets such as
equities classified as available-for-sale are included in the
fair value reserve in equity.

On consolidation, the results of overseas operations are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at rates approximating
to those ruling when the transactions took place. All assets
and liabilities of overseas operations, including goodwill
arising on the acquisition of those operations, are translated
at the rate ruling at the end of reporting period. Exchange
differences arising on translating the opening net assets
at opening rate and the results of overseas operations at
actual rate are recognised directly in consolidated statement
of comprehensive income (the “foreign exchange reserve”).
Exchange differences recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income of group entities’
separate financial statements on the translation of long-term
monetary items forming part of the Group’s net investment
in the overseas operation concerned are reclassified to
the foreign exchange reserve if the item is denominated
in the functional currency of the Group or the overseas
operation concerned.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange
differences recognised in the foreign exchange reserve
relating to that operation up to the date of disposal are
transferred to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as part of the profit or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 BE-_TTNAFAA=THIEANEA

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are included in finance costs in the
consolidated income statement in the period in which
they are incurred, except to the extent that they are
capitalised as being directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use or sale.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset
for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

TURNOVER

The Group is principally engaged in the (i) exploitation and
management of timber resources in the PRC; (ii) research
and development, processing, manufacture, distribution,
marketing and sales of a wide range of timber products and
(iii) the manufacture and sales of electronic products.
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Six months
ended 30 June
BERA=THLEAER

2009 2008

ZBENF ZETNF

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REERZ) (REEER)

HK$’000 HK$'000

TET FET

Income from logging and AMEEREEUR 1,662 58,795
trading of timber and $HE ARMARE fn 2 A

sales of flooring products
Sales of electronic products HEEFER 186,896 206,160
188,558 264,955




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information is presented by way of two segment
formats:

(i) on a primary segment reporting basis, by business
segment; and

(i) onasecondary segment reporting basis, by geographical
segment.

The principal activities of the Group are (i) integrated timber
business and (ii) the manufacture and sales of electronic
products, which is managed according to the geographical
location of ultimate customers.

Each of the Group’s geographical segments, represents a
strategic business unit that offers products to customers
located in different geographical areas which are subject
to risks and returns that are different from those of other
geographical segments.

The Group’s geographical segments are as follows:

(a) People’s Republic of China;

(o) Hong Kong;

(c) India;

(d) Elsewhere in Asia; and

(e) Africa, Western Europe, the Middle East, North and
South America, and Russia.

In determining the Group’s geographical segments, revenues,
results, assets and liabilities are attributed to the segments
based on the location of the customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(a) Business segments

The following tables present revenue, results and
certain asset, liability and expenditure information for

the Group’s business segments.

For the six months ended 30 June

Timber business

TEER#)
(a) ¥ 2%

o

B o

TREBINEEXB OB W - ¥
BRETEE BERHAXZE

B ENH=1HIiEA

Electronic consumer
products business

Consolidated

HARER ETHEEERER ge
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
“EERFE -TT\E ZEBEBEAF —TT)\& ZEEAF _-TT/)\f
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER) (REER) (REE%) (REER) (REER)
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THT FHEL TR TR T TR

Segment revenue: AN -
Sales to external customers FASMNEEFHE 1,662 58,795 186,896 206,160 188,558 264,955
Segment results EEL 361,235 (3,124) (7,917) (12,539) 353,318 (15,663)
Unallocated expenses KARZHT (28,867) (50,655)
Profit/(loss) before tax Bitaias/(58) 324,451 (66,318)
Income tax expenses FERAY (755) (129)
Profit/(loss) for the period BARRERA

attributable to owners ElnER/ (58)

of the Company 323,696 (66,447)
Other segment information: ~ HttHEEH
Depreciation e 1,185 12,780 9,558 9,908 10,743 22,688
Unallocated depreciation RABZTE - - - - 28 28

1,185 12,780 9,558 9,908 10,771 22,716

Capital expenditure BREY 2,546 973 7,244 5,403 9,790 6,376
Write-down of inventories MAREZR

to net realisable value R FE 3,679 - 413 - 4,092 -

Pursuant to Memorandum of Understanding
signed on 29 June 2009 and conditional share
transfer agreement signed on 10 July 2009 in
respect of the proposed transactions, this amount
representing the revenue from G&G Wood will not
be consolidated in the accounts of the Group
upon the completion of proposed transactions.

Y REMEBRSMN_TTAER
AT NBET 2 FRE SRR
“TZRNFLATRE LB G
B EEGE  WEREAKRZ
EARHIRZIRA - REREERS
BIARPARE ZRENFE -



FEEBRAEGRAT —TTNFRBRE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED e EHRRME
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 BE_ZEZENAENA=+THIENEAB
5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. 2EER#)

(a) XBoE (&)
BENA=1HINEA (&)

(a) Business segments (Continued)
For the six months ended 30 June (Continued)

Timber business

Electronic consumer
products business

Consolidated

HAREHR ETHEEERER G
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
“EENE C—TT)\f ZBEAE C-TT/\f ZEENE C—TI)\%
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER) (REBR) (REE%) (REER) (REER)
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THEx THT TR T T T
Write (back)/down value of (BE)/HEmE
property, plant and equipment  FERRME (88,935) - 11,302 3,228 (77,633) 3,228
(Gain)/loss on disposal of HENE  BER
property, plant and equipment &z (W) /B8 (43) - - 2,778 (43) 2778
Impairment loss recongised/ REWE SRS
(reversal) in respect of BR/(BR)Z
trade receivables HEBE 14,512 - (886) - 13,626 -
Impairment loss (reversal)/ ShE M EY R
recongised in respect of REE(ER)/
doubtful otherreceivables BRZAERR (2,768) - 110 - (2,658) -
Deficit on revaluation of BEfEETHR
leasehold land and buildings BT B4 804 - - - 804 -
At 30 June 2009 (Unaudited)/ RZZTNE
At 31 December 2008 (Audited) 7~A=1H
(RE®),/
“TEN\E
+-A=1-8
(FE%)
Segment assets PHEEE 4,262,383 3,554,467 258,537 554,239 = 4,520,920 4,108,706
Unallocated assets KOEZEE - - - - 143,739 13,445
Total assets BEE 4,262,383 3,554,467 258,537 554,239 = 4,664,659 4,122,151
Segment liabilities PEER 636,256 635,468 86,943 95,697 723,199 731,165
Unallocated liabilities Kol aE - - - - 36,401 57,431
Total liabilities BEfE 636,256 635,468 86,943 95607 759,600 788,596




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Geographical segments based on the
location of customers

The following tables present revenue, results and
certain asset, liability and expenditure information for
the Group’s geographical segments.

For the six months ended 30 June

B2 _ZZNFA=1+HIEAEA
5. 28¥ER®E)

(b) BEXEFHAEBES M ZHLE
738

TR B T 8 2 3k -
LERETEE ABRMXZE
# o

BENHAH=1Hi1EA

Africa, Western Europe,

the Middle East,
North and
People’s Republic Elsewhere in South America,
of China Hong Kong India Asia and Russia Consolidated
#i- BR 4R
PEARAAE B il EHERLE EAEY N &

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
CRINE CSR)\E CREAE DR/ ZREAE CTE)E ZEERRE CRT)E CERAE CRT)F CERME C3R)f
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited) - (Unaudited)
(%8%h) (7020 (REER) (x020) (FEER) (ROsh) (REER) (REz0) (REEE) (RE20) (FEER) (RE2R)

HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000 HKS000  HKSO00 HKS000 HKSO00 HKS000  HKS000 HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000

TRn TEr  TRn  TEr TRn TEr  TEn  TEr TR TEr fRm T

Seqment revenue: AEhE:
Sales to external customers RIREPRE 24,694 86376 1,193 1118 67,669 59949 26543 20282 78459 88230 188558 264,955
Segment results kit 373,258 2007 (9343) (39751)  (2828)  (3647)  (1,209) (1707)  (3,704)  (5,178) 336,474  (48,076)
Unallocated income FAEZHA 2301 88
Unallocated expenses FORIRL (548)  (126)
Proft{oss) from operations end/ (58) WM (731¢)
Finance costs HERE (13,496)  (19,004)
Proftoss) before tax RHaER/(Bt) 2445 (66,318)
Income tax expenses fEhRL (155 (129)
Profitoss) for the SRLEREA

period attributable to the owners BlER/(58)

of the Company 323,69 (66,447)
Qther segment informaion; EbAREH:
Depreciation i3 2,159 138% 265 265 2,949 2,881 1,358 1,407 4012 4200 10748 22,688
Unallocated depreciation KORHE - - - - - - - - - - % %

2,159  138% 265 265 2,949 2,881 1,358 1,407 4,012 424010111 22716

Capital expenditure BRR% 3,439 4135 46 10 2,235 1,959 1,029 519 3,04 2,431 9,79 9,154
Write-down of inventories to HAGEETEREE

net realisable valug

3133 - 2 - 131 - 63 - 163 - 409 -




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Geographical segments based on the
location of customers (Continued)

For the six months ended 30 June

5.

EER#)
(b) REFMEMEI M Z2HE
¥ (E)

BENA=1HIFNEA (&)

(Continued)
Africa, Western Europe,
the Middle East,
People’s Republic Elsewhere in  North and South America,
of China Hong Kong India Asia and Russia Consolidated
#ER 4R
PEARRAR B il GHEGEE EAEY N &5

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Z8BAE C3T\F CEEBAE CTENE ZBBAE C3T/\F ZEBAF ITNE ZEBAE CTINE Z¥EAE -3T)%
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudtec) (Unaudited) = (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaucited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudlted) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RESE) (RE20) (REEE) (REz0) (REFQ) (REst) (REEM) (RE20) (RESK) (RE37) (REER) (REE%)

HKS'000  HKS000  HKSO00 HKS000  HKS'000 HKS000  HKSO00 HKS000  HKS000 HKS000  HKS'00  HKSO00

TEn TEr  TEm TEr  TEn TEr  TEn  TEr TEm  TEr T TEn

Write (back)/down value of property,

plant and equipment

(B2 4z
fERRE

(87,456) 621 62 a- 3886 1088 1,726 512 4449

o

80 (17633 3228

Loss/[gain) disposal of property,

HETR RERREL

plant and equipment BE/(45) -8 43) - - - - - - - w) 218
Impairment loss recognised/ HENEREERD/

(reversal) in respect o trade (BE)ZREER

receivables 14,396 - (1) - (281) - (135) - (349) - 13626 -
(Reversal)fimpairment loss SERRIGE(RE) /B

recognised in respect of other REEE

receivables (2,768) - 16 - 3 - 17 - Y] - (268 -
Defict on revaluation of easehold EREETHRETIEY

land and buidings 804 - - - - - - - = - 804 -




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 HE-_ZEZNFAA=THIE~EA
5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. 7EER )
(b) Geographical segments based on the (b) REFMEMEI M ZHE
location of customers (Continued) DHE(E)
At 30 June 2009 (Unaudited)/31 December RZFEFENFNA=FTHCK
2008 (Audited) KEEZ) —EENFFZA
=Fr—H&FEZ)
Africa, Western Europe,
the Middle East,
People’s Republic Elsewherein ~ North and South America,
of China Hong Kong India Asia and Russia Consolidated
i EE AR
hEARRAE Bt il EHESLE ELENREEE &8
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
ZEBAE CRR)\F ZREBAE CTRN\E ZBERE CR)\F ZEBAF RT\E ZRBAE CRRN\E ZEMpF _3%)4
(Unaudited)  (Audted) (Unaudited)  (Audtec) (Unaudited)  (Audited) (Unaudited)  (Audited) (Unaudited)  (Audted) (Unaudited)  (Audited)
(rB2H) (2zv) (REER) (220 (REER) (020 (REER) (P20 (REER) (230) (REER) (EE%)
HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000 HKS000  HK$'000 HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK§'000 HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
TEn TEr  TRn TEn| TEmn TEr  TEn i TRn  TEn| TEm  Tin
Seqment assels NBEE 4110665 3619290 6408 11554 117825 13002 BGT00 65340 14684 200272 4ASLIM 4035508
Unallocated assets KAEEE - - - - - - - - - - 26882 86648
Total assets BEE 4,110,665 3,619,290 6403 11554 117,825 130052 G600 65340 146,184 200272 4664659 4,122,151
Segment libiles 7ERE 593,565 71671 639060 677119 26821 27828 12348 1352 36499 40955 723199 731,165
Unalocated liablies FAEZRR - - - - - - - - - - %400 s7s8
Total liabities faz 583,565 71671 63960 577,119 26821 27828 12348 13592 36499 40,955 769,600 786,59




OTHER INCOME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

6. HftgA

Six months
ended 30 June

BEAA=THLEAEAR

2009 2008
—ZEhE ZTENE
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEXR) (REEZ)
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TET
Gain on disposal of property,  HEWE « BE KH&EZ IS
plant and equipment 43 -
Reversal of impairment loss BEME  BERREZREEE
of property, plant and
equipment 88,935 -
Reversal of impairment loss in 130 £ b [ U 2008 2 e (EE5 18
respect of other receivables 2,768 -
Sundry income HEMA 872 537
Rental income He WA 132 -
Dividend income % B A - 30
Interest income SN ON 1,454 351
94,204 918
OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 7. HithmRER
Six months
ended 30 June
BEAA=+AHLKEAR
2009 2008
—EEZhE ZTENF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEZ)
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Gain arising from changes EMEEZ ATEEH
in fair value less estimated LI AT SH S BB AN E A 2 W
point-of-sale costs of
biological assets 330,793 -
Impairment loss on A EeREE RERBE
available-for-sales
financial assets - (6,501)
330,793 (6,501)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS

The Group’s profit/(loss) from operations is arrived at after

charging:

8. RE®A(FE)

SEEEEBEN, (BR)EMGK

Six months

ended 30 June

BEXAZTHLEAEA

2009 2008
—ZEhE —TENE
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REBER) (REEER)
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FHEL
Cost of inventories sold BEREZRAE 175,693 222,495
Depreciation of property, mE - BE &
plant and equipment on HENE
- owned assets -BEEE 10,771 22,716
Amortisation of owners occupied 2T {5+t SR
leasehold interest in land 572 430
Minimum lease payments under &&MHzHET R
operating leases for BFHEHSMHR
leasehold land and buildings 2,850 908
Auditors’ remuneration ZER B & 980 165
Staff costs (excluding directors’ B IRA(TBEEEHSE)
emoluments)
- Wages and salaries - IERk¥F® 37,761 34,082
Retirement benefits scheme RIRR I EI R
contributions (excluding (TBEEEEH)
directors’ contributions) 2,525 2,483
Share-based payments AR BERMRZHY
expenses 23,616 33,238
Write-down of inventories to WRFEZ 25 FE
net realisable value 4,092 -
Impairment loss recognised in HEWE HRIERR 2 REEE
respect of trade receivables 13,626 -
Impairment loss recognised in FE fh EUGRIB R 2 BB BB
respect of other receivables 110 -
Exchange loss, net E N e FE 201 51
Write-down of property, WORE - BB KR
plant and equipment 11,302 3,228
Deficit on revaluation of EHHEL I REF 2 BA
leasehold land and buildings 804 -
Impairment loss on available- A EEREE ZHERE
for-sales financial assets - 6,501
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE BERREBZER
plant and equipment - 2,778




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

9. FINANCE COSTS

9. MBRAE

Six months
ended 30 June
HERA=THLAEAR

2009 2008
—2BNE —TENF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER)
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FHET
Interest on: LATIEE ZFE

Bank loans wholly repayable ~ BRAFARZHEEZ
within 5 years RITER 12,252 14,368
Convertible note payable JER AR R iR 1,244 4,636
13,496 19,004

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSES

10. FIBHBEX

Six months
ended 30 June
BEAA=THLEAER

2009 2008
ZBENE ZETNF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEX) (REEER)
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FET
Current taxation: REEIE
Hong Kong BB - -
Other jurisdictions Hip el iR 311 257
Under/(over)-provision TFEBBIEGREREE)
in prior years
Hong Kong BB - (128)
Other jurisdictions HEhr AR 444 -
755 129




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED e EHRRME
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 BE—ZTAEAA=TBILNEA

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued) 10. REFHEXZ(®)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2008:16.5%)
of the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
for the Period.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the
rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

Pursuant to the laws and regulations in the PRC, certain
Group’s PRC subsidiaries are entitled to exemption from PRC
Foreign Enterprise Income Tax for two years commencing
from their first profit-making year, followed by a 50% relief
for the three years thereafter.

Under Decree-Law no. 58/99/M, a Macau company
incorporated under that Law (called “568/99/M Company”)
is exempted from Macau complementary tax (Macau
income tax) as long as the 58/99/M Company does not
sell its products to a Macau resident company. Currently,
Tak Shun (Lam’s) Macao Commercial Offshore Limited is
qualified as 58/99/M Companies.

No provision for deferred tax had been made as the Group
did not have any significant unprovided deferred tax assets
and liabilities in respect of the Period (2008: Nil).

EENEHRBREBEANBES ERRZ
HETEERBEFIEH T16.5% (ZTF
N\EE 16.5%) st E B -

EEMBZERELEZHRBIRES A
FRERZBIIHERE -

REBFBEOZERZES  ATREZTE
MERARARARLTBEIIELEXMAE
B HEEENFEEFME  HE=
FRIRAE -

BRI EL8/909/MIES - RIBZE
2Kz 2 B P A RI([58/99/MA
Al]) o A EA G Ak AN R P R T B R PY
FR1E®E) » ME58/99/MA ) AN A] [ P 2K
TRBIHEEEEM - B ATEE(MKK) R
PigEE R ERIBBR QAR A58/99/M
NEVEH »

RiSESE N AN Sl i = S TN N N 14
BEEHRBEEERAB(ZTTN\F:
) ES WS EE BRI -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

The tax expenses for the Period can be reconciled to the
profit/(loss) per the consolidated income statement is as

follows:

Y
o
g
¥
e
s
=
R

BHE_ZZNFAAA=+HILEAR
10. FRfEBiBA R ()
REMBH T B F (BB REE
Wk 2 HERAT
Six months

ended 30 June
BEAA=THLEAER

2009 2008
—ZEREF —ZENF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEZ)
HK$’000 HK$'000
THExT FET
Profit/(loss) before taxation BREADEF(ER) 324,451 (66,318)
Tax at domestic income tax rate RAMATERHERAE 2 FIA 53,534 (10,942)
Tax effect of expenses that are  FtetEREEROEF T35 =2
not deductible in determining ZHBRE
taxable profit 9,626 3,206
Tax effect of income that is not Bt & MR E FI 5B R B A
taxable in determining B E
taxable profit (66,142) (1,830)
Tax effect of tax losses AERBBEBERE HBTE
not recognized 4,248 9,610
Under/(over)-provision BERMERETR,/ (BERE)
in prior periods 444 (144)
Utilization of previously HABTRERNBEEE
unrecognized tax losses 77 29
Effect of different tax rates of FEMAEEELEE ZWBA T
subsidiaries operating in ZTRABER &
other jurisdictions (1,032) 200
Tax expenses for the Period AHME BT 755 129




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 HE_TTAEANA=THIL?

11. DIVIDEND 1. RE

No interim dividend has paid or proposed for the six months
ended 30 June 2009 and has been proposed since the

end of reporting period (30 June 2008: Nil).
B &)

12. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

12. BREBR (FEE)

BE-ZETAFRA=+THIEXERL
IR SR ERALE - B HmE R AK
NERKEMRE(ZZEZENERA=

(a) Basic earnings/(loss) per share (a) BREAXER (FE)

The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share is
based on the Group’s profit for the Period attributable
to the owners of the Company of approximately
HK$214,224,000 (2008: loss of HK$65,505,000)
and the weighted average of 24,456,221,801 (2008:
17,669,581,347) ordinary shares in issue during the
Period.

GRERRBFN,(FHIE) DIREAR
HMEE R RHE AELEF L
214,224,000 T( Z T )\ F :
/&5 $865,505,0007% 7T ) & 7 Hi i
24,456,221,801 % (=TT NF :
17,669,581,3470% ) B 17 @
ZINHEF IO ER -

Six months
ended 30 June
BEAA=THLEAER

2009
Weighted average —TEhE
number of (Unaudited)
ordinary shares ZTERMEFIIE (REER)

2008
—ETN\EF
(Unaudited)
(REEEZ)

Issued ordinary shares at RN —A—HBZDETLREK

1 January

Effect of issuance of
placing shares

Effect of issuance of
conversion shares

Effect of exercise of
share options

Effect of exercise of listed
warrants

23,452,299,150
RIRERNZFE
407,237,569
RITMBRN 2R
596,685,082
TERREZRE

TELmRREEZTE

17,629,928,600

38,128,022

1,624,725

Weighted average number
of ordinary shares
at 30 June

RAAZtRZEER
ik B2k
24,456,221,801

17,669,681,347




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

12. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (continued)
(b) Diluted earnings/(loss) per share

As the share options, conversion shares and listed
warrants outstanding during the six months ended 30
June 2009 and 2008 were anti-dilutive to the Group’s
earning/(loss) per share, diluted earnings/(loss) per
share were not adjusted in this respect for the six
months ended 30 June 2009 and 2008.

13. OWNER-OCCUPIED LEASEHOLD INTEREST
IN LAND

The Group’s owner-occupied leasehold interest in land

12. BREF(FE) 2
(b) ERBEERR (FHE)
HRBE_TTAFR_TT/N\F
NAZTBRIERNERARZRITERE
[t - MR R ETMRREEE
EEERERN,(BER)EARE
ENE  MREBEZZEEAFERS
ZEENFARNAZTHIEANEARIT &
R AESREERT(EE) -

1. XEMMALEEER

SEzEFTHRIHEEREREERE

comprises:
30 June 31 December
2009 2008
—EEhE ZTENF
AA=TH +ZA=+H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REBER) (E&%)
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Medium-term leasehold KRBz R EBREE T
land in PRC 51,944 52,397
Analysed for reporting BREZEMDMA
purpose as:
- current assets - NEBEE 572 984
- non-current assets —FRBEE 51,372 51,413

51,944 52,397




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

14. GOODWILL 14. B8
30 June 31 December
2009 2008
—EERE —EENE
AA=t+H +-A=+H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (f8&%)
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Cost A
At 1 January mn—HA—H 25,715 25,715
Arising on acquisition R s B 1y 7 A - -
At the end of the period/year RERER R 25,715 25,715
Accumulated impairment losses R REFE
At 1 January »—A—H (25,715) -
Provided for the period/year BN,/ FEREE - (25,715)
At the end of the period/year REIR /F 48 (25,715) (25,715)
Carrying amount REE
At the end of the period/year REIRR /R - -

As at 31st December 2008, the directors of the Company
reviewed the performance and viability of floorboard
manufacturing business, which was operated by 4k~ %
AR HEEER 2T (“G&G Wood Products”), a subsidiary
of the Company. The directors of the Company estimated
that G&G Wood Products cannot generate sufficient cash
flow to sustain a viable business. Thus, impairment losses
have been fully provided for the goodwill which arised from
acquisition of G&G Wood Products.

RZBENF+_A=+—H QA%
EFERFHRRZHE AR ZZ A
mblEERAB (2B A GDEE
ZHIRBERBZRBARAIITE - A
B BRzBAHmREEERH
REeRAGRHATER - Bit - 23tk
Bz AGRMELEZHEHRE2H
B R R -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. % - MERRHE

Leasehold
Improvements,
Medium term furniture, office
leasehold Land  Construction Plant and equipment and
and Buildings  in progress  machinery motor vehicles Total
HENERE
B PAE
PHEETHRET ERIE  HERES ERAE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThR iR T TR Thr
Cost or valuation AR R
At 1 January 2008 (Audited] RZEEN\E-A-B(LEH) 140,280 28,401 386,262 21,580 576,523
Additions A - 9,091 3,601 6,606 19,298
Transfer a5 19,311 (19,311) - - -
Deficit on revaluation EfEH (51,609) - - - (51,608)
Write-down of property, plant and equipment A% - BRERRE (39,876) - (243,285) (832) (283,993)
Disposals & - - (6,405) (1,324) (7,729)
Exchange realignment EiHE 8,638 766 22,142 1,103 32,649
At 31 December 2008 and RIEENETZA=T-BR
1 January 2009 (Audited) “EINE-A-RBIEER) 76,750 18,047 162,315 27,133 285,145
Additions AE 292 1,691 5,937 1,870 9,790
Transfer g% 5,388 [5,420) - 3 -
Deficit on revaluation B (804) - - - (804)
Write-back of property, plant and equipment BENE - BERRE - - 88,935 - 88,935
Write-down of property, plant and equipment A% - BRERRE - - (46,522) - (46,522)
Disposals HE - - (2,069) (3,322) (5,391)
Reclassification as held for sales ENDEARELE - - (88,935) - (88,935)
Exchange realignment Exfz 175 31 385 53 644
At 30 June 2009 (Unaudited) RZFEAEAAZTH(REER) 81,801 15,249 120,046 25,766 242,862
Analysis of cost or valuation AL EEA
At cost HREA - 15,49 120,046 25,766 161,061
At valuation it 81,801 - - - 81,801
81,801 15,249 120,046 25,766 242,862
Depreciation g
At 1 January 2008 (Audited) RZFT\E-A-R(EEH) - - 76,348 11,650 87,998
Provided for the year ERER 5421 - 48,508 4,229 58,164
Write-back on revaluation EffEER 2,107) - - - (2,107)
Write-down of property, plant and equipment WRm%  BEREE (3,322) - (41,252) (183) (44,757)
Disposals uf - - (3,534) (1,241) (4,775)
Exchange realignment EHHE ) - 5,784 502 6,468
At 31 December 2008 and RZBENETZA=T-BR
1 January 2009 (Audited) ZITNF-A-A(EER) 90 - 85,854 15,047 100,991
Provided for the period BhEE 786 - 8,344 1,641 10,771
Write-back on revaluation SRED - - - - -
Write-down of property, plant and equipment Hng - BEREE - - (35,220) - (35,220)
Disposals e - - (96) (846) (942)
Exchange realignment Ejfz 1 - 201 28 230
At 30 June 2009 (Unaudited) RZEENEAAZTA(REER) 877 - 59,083 15,870 75,830
Carrying amounts BEE
At 30 June 2009 (Unaudited) RZFSNEAA=TH(KEER) 80,924 15,249 60,963 9,89 167,082
At 31 December 2008 (Audited) RZFENFTZA=1t-B(4ER) 76,660 18,047 76,461 12,086 184,154




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings included above
are held under the following lease terms:

15.

ME - - BRERRZE®

ExmE s EEEEL W REFHIRE
NTHEFHFA :

30 June 31 December
2009 2008
—ZERE —ZEENE
AA=1H +-A=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (B&E%)
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Medium-term leases REBZHBHEL
in Hong Kong 4,872 4,900
Medium-term leases in the PRC 7Bl 2 sh EAFA 49 76,052 71,760
80,924 76,660

At 30 June 2009, one of the leasehold land and buildings
which located in PRC were revalued on a depreciated
replacement costs basis by LCH (Asia Pacific) Surveyors
Limited, at HK$3,020,000 (2008: HK$3,824,000). The
resulting revaluation deficit of approximately HK$804,000
(2008: deficit of approximately HK$941,000) had been
charged to the consolidated income statement.

For the remaining leasehold land and buildings which located
in Hong Kong and PRC been carried at historical cost or
valuation less accumulated depreciation, the directors have
considered the carrying amount of such leasehold land and
building do not differ significantly from the previously revalued
amounts at 31 December 2008.

MN_ZBTAFEA=1+H Hbh—HEf
REBEZAE T REFHFEITIE
MAERARINITESEXN AR ESH A
3,020,000/t (ZFF )\ :3,824,000
BIT) o REHESE ZEA#1804,000%
TL(ZZEZ)\F « EA4L#1941,000/87T)
ERERE SR INR -

FEBRAL A E B N BRI 2 PR AR B
BERRFFHEINRZEE LI REFMm
FOEERAREHELHWEET 2
HEELNN _ZZENF+_A=+—
BzEHBEBENIK -
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16. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS 16. £ EE

30 June 31 December

2009 2008

—ZEhE ZTENF

AA=1+H +=ZA=+—H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REER) (fE&E%)

HK$’000 HK$'000

TERT TET

At 1 January »w—HA—H 3,227,017 3,415,440

Direct sales HELE - (29,376)

Addition NE = 4,942

Exchange realignment IE 5 % 7,309 180,905

Gain/(loss) arising from EMEEZ ATFEZEE A

changes in fair value less HEMKAESE
estimated point-of-sale cost 2z (B8)

of biological assets 330,793 (344,894)

At the end of the period/year — HI#R /448 3,565,119 3,227,017

The analysis of fair value of biological assets by location

is as follows:

EMEE A FERBERSEBWT

30 June 31 December

2009 2008

—EEhE ZETNF

AA=+H +=ZA=+—H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REER) (fEE%)

HK$°000 HK$’000

FTERT FHET

Hebei ipld 31,438 32,588

Yunnan = 3,533,681 3,194,429

3,565,119 3,227,017

At 30 June 2009 and 31 December 2008, the Group’s m:gghﬁf\ﬂ =+HRZZEENEF

biological assets in PRC were independently valued by +ZA=+—8 SERFREZEME

LCH (Asia-Pacific) Surveyors Limited. E B A EETT )E'J%Eﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁjﬁﬁﬁ
@ -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED e EHRRME
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 BE—ZTAEAA=TBILNEA

16. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (Continued) 16. EYEE &)

In valuing the inventory of standing trees, the valuer has
considered three approaches to value with reference to
inventory of standing trees as well as the accounting
standard, and found that market approach is the most
reasonable approach for this valuation. This method uses
the present market value in terms of price per unit volume
of the final product and the total merchantable volume of
timber in the concession as basis for coming up with the
estimated value. The underlying theory of this approach
is existing market price is dependent parameter since it
reflects how much the buyer is willing to pay and how much
the seller is willing to give up his goods and services.

In using the market approach, the valuer has taken the
following into consideration:

° Average diameter and length of round logs being sold
in the locality;

o The diameter at breast height and the merchantable
height of the standing trees;

° Parameters used in classifying young, mid-aged, near
mature and mature trees;

° Species of the standing trees;

o The quantity of timber based on the adjusted inventory
provided to us; and

o Cutting cost, transportation cost, forestry fund, and
other associated costs necessary to process the
standing trees to round logs.

The valuer understands, that it is the intention of the
Group to sell the biological assets as i) round logs to
sawmills in their respective locality, ii) raw material in its
solid and engineered wood factory and iii) process some
of the harvested timber to sawn timber in its sawmill.
Factors considered in selling harvested timber are location
of the forest area, species of timber, volume of timber
and requirement of the Green & Good Group’s owned
factories. The valuer has assumed in its valuation that
the entire inventory will be sold in their respect locality
as round logs since the Green & Good Group’s intended
to use only a small quantity of the timber for processing
in owned factories.

REBREEE 2 HAGER  HEMHS
SELRRFEZEAZFE NG ER
MEBE=RMHEETE LHEBRMSMHE
ERMBREZZAETE - WWHEE
DEBAMZERERZBENEEZ
RITHERABEME AR HEZ KM
BRERAEEE  UtEBAB M
BEE - WHEEEZERNERLS  RITH
BRRAKEZ2E BRERRETE
ENLzEREREARELREHED
Ko PR M B B WER 2 (B 1% o

ERATSHEER - HEMEE BN
DR

o HGEMEEZEMZEHEARER
=3

s BHEEZEAZENSELCKREA
M

o DYHE - F R - BORMKE
REERBZ28

o HBRFABAZESR:

s REEFMERHZEHBAME
B EZAMEE Rk

o EBRETEIE 2 AL IE K R B P
FERZ R ~ BB - A
EXEES LEMAREAA

HEMMNE EEAEBEEMEEE
BNEM ETFESESAMELEZ
EAR  INEME - EFEAREESAK
MR Rii) 3810 B R AR M & F 5B AR
AR BEE 2 AN - HHEER
RILAM BT B2 A& AWS 2 T
2 AMZEE AVGTERREGRE
FrREBAEZHEMARRE - (58
MEBERETFEREEIAMTER
SHENESA AR AEMERE
& ARz EREEESASRER
BAOEARM -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

16.

17.

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (Continued)

During the valuer’s on-site inspection, the valuer was
informed that young and mid-age trees are also marketable
but at lower prices compared to near mature, mature and
over mature trees. For this reason, the valuer has valued
the entire timber inventory in the forestry reports.

In valuing the inventory of standing tree using the market
approach, the valuer has used the average mill gate round
log prices taking into consideration tree species, age and
location.

Reasonable recovery rates to allow for losses before and
during harvesting as well as costs required to harvest and
transport the timber from the forest to local point of sales
were then deducted to arrive at its opinion of value. The
other costs that were considered in the valuer’s valuation
are: harvesting and transportation cost to main road or
point of sales, local and national taxed fund, forestry road
allowance and forest management cost.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 30 June 2009
are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

Nominal value of
paid-up share/

16.

17.

EYEE#E)
EBHBREA - HEMEEDERE
R IRAIET S FHE  EEETE
B BRRREEZEAERESER
(£ - BRI - HEMC BHELR
SR T 2 AN G B ETHE -

HEMERABHSEEEHRRFEZ
BAZEFEETHER - ERAEARR
ZEMFEE(EF A ARER - Bk
KM E)Ft & o

HEMZHEEEREFAGEZEEX
(ESRKAT RIRIKB 2 BRIELEE
W R RS AT M EmEHE
BB ZA) - hEMEGBERES
BZEMEADRA  REKEBEX
BAHER KA BHRERBARE
& MERRIERHRMERKA -

MEARZHE
R-ZEAFXA=TATEHBAA
ZEEMT :

Percentage

of

equity

attributable to

Name and operations registered capital the Company Principal activities
HRAL/ BIR BaRE/
AREB EEnY EREAEE NAEEREESL  TEEH
Direct  Indirect
E# it
Green & Good Group Limited British Virgin Ordinary US$100 70 - Investment holding
(“Green & Good”) (Note 1) Islands EEBRI100ETT REER
BEEREERAR EBRAEE
(T2 %)) ()
Leeka Wood Co., Ltd. PRC RMB100,000,000 - 70 Manufacture, distribution and
(Note 2) s AK%100,000,0007T sales of timber flooring products
B EAEERAR (M32) and furniture
2 SEREEAHRERRRE
gzERHRHEERAR Note 3)  PRC US$1,280,000 - 47.39  Manufacture, distrioution and
BrEABRAEERAA (W)  F 1,280,000% 7 sales of flooring product

R DERBEBRER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

17. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

Nominal value of
paid-up share/

17. B RAR2FBE @)

Percentage
of equity
attributable to

Name and operations registered capital the Company Principal activities
HMAL/ HIR BaR%/
kL S EMEREE RARERABLN  TEEH
Direct  Indirect
E& GE:3

E-Today Technology Limited British Virgin Ordinary US$600 100 - Investment holding
(“E-Today") Islands EBR600ET RERR

E-Today Technology Limited ERRUEE
(“E-Today")

Deji Electronic Co., Ltd. PRC HK$10,200,000 - 100 Manufacture and sales of
Putian County, Fujian i 10,200,000 7T electronic products
(“Deji Electronic”) (Note 4) LERHEETER

BREEEREABTARAH
([EEET))(H3t4)

Putian Dexing Electronic Co., Ltd. PRC HK$128,380,000 - 100 Manufacture and sales of
(“Putian Dexing”) (Note 5) HE 128,380,000/ 7T electronic products

EHEREETERAA RERHESTER
((EmEE])(Hits)

Putian Derong Electronic Co., Ltd. PRC HK$63,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and sales of
(“Putian Derong”) (Note 6) i 63,000,000/ 0 electronic products

ERTEXETARAA RERHERTER
(IBmEs ) (Hze)

Zhejiang Yiwu Dexing PRC US$9,950,000 - 100 Inactive
Electronic Co., Ltd. M 9,950,000% 7 TEgx
(“Zhejiang Yiwu") (Note 7)

MIEEREEFAERAA
(MHIES ) (HE7)

Tak Shun (Lam’s) Company Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - 100 Investment holding and distribution
(“Tak Shun Lam”) Bk Non-voting deferred of electronic products

EEMK)ERAF HK$10,000 (Note 8) RAERROHETER
(MeE(x))) TRoET

BERZERITR
10,0008 7 (ME8)

Advance Display Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Sales of Liquid Crystal
Technology Limited B 10,0008 7T Display products

EBERRMERAR HEREBETER

Tak Shun (Lam’s) Macao Macau MOP500,000 - 100 Distribution of electronic products
Commercial Offshore Limited 2P 500,000 PHEETER

B () RPIBFEEREERAA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

17. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:

Note 6:

Note 7:

Green & Good is an investment holding company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands on 2 November
2006 and whose sole asset is the entire equity interest
in Leeka Wood Co., Ltd.

Leeka Wood Co., Ltd. is a wholly foreign owned enterprise
established in the PRC for an operating period from its
date of establishment on 29 March 2006 to 21 January
2027. The registered and paidup capital of Leeka Wood
Co., Ltd. amounted to RMB100,000,000.

42 =AREIR B EER AR is a joint venture funded by
Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan and the PRC (& 8 2 15 A
A B A7) established in the PRC for an operating period
of 15 years commencing from its date of establishment
on 23 December 2004. The registered and paid-up
capital of &2 EAGIMFIEFMRAFT amounted to
US$12,800,000.

Deji Electronic is a Sole Foreign Investment Enterprise
established in the PRC for an operating period of 20
years commencing from its date of establishment on
27 April 1992. The registered and paid-up capital of
Deji Electronic amounted to HK$10,200,000.

Putian Dexing is a Sole Foreign Investment Enterprise
established in the PRC for an operating period of 50
years commencing from its date of establishment on
18 May 1998. The registered and paid-up capital of
Putian Dexing amounted to HK$128,380,000.

Putian Derong is a Sole Foreign Investment Enterprise
established in the PRC for an operating period of 50
years commencing from its date of establishment on
29 April 2001. The registered and paid-up capital of
Putian Derong amounted to HK$63,000,000.

Zhejiang Yiwu is a Sole Foreign Investment Enterprise
established in the PRC for an operating period of 30
years commencing from its date of establishment on 28
November 2003. The registered and paid up capital of
Zhejiang Yiwu amounted to US$9,950,000 (equivalent
to HK$77,610,000).

[
A
A

17. B RAR2FBE @)

BIaET -

FiEE2 -

BIRES -

fsza

HIzES -

M6 :

MizE7 -

BIBEARCTEAET—A=
AEXRBRLHBEMAT LR
EHERAT MAR—EEAR
BT EARARATZ 2BRA
s -

B2 RAEBRARARPEMNKL
ZEBENERERE  HZTER
FZA-t+hBRZBHRE-F
—tE—A-+—BHRMEE - &
ZEAEBRARZEMEHBEE
A B AR#100,000,0007T ©

A REEBRQAABR
FEATZEBRERERNAER
Al AZEEWEFT-_A=+=
HAC M B AR AC & F HR B 154 -
HrEARHGEEBRARZE
fit & & B & A& A&12,800,0003%

JC ©

BEETRANPEMKILZBAIN
ERAGR B ANZFMA
ZHEARYAHEEEFHR
20%F - EEE T M EBEE
410,200,000/ 7T «

BAREANPENKIZEE
SNERERE  A-NAANFR
At NABRIZAHEEEFHE
50F - BREEZAMELRSR
128,380,000/ 7T °

BB AR B T 2 B A
HRALK A-TT—FMA
“tABRIAMESEFNA
0% - HEERZEMALS
63,000,000/ 7T °

HIESARF BRI ZBEIN
ERECE BT =F+—
A =+ /\ BRI B H & & 4 Y
BI0F - HIEESZAMEAR
& K /59,950,000 (4 & »
77,610,000/87T) °
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

17.

18.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Note 8:  The non-voting deferred shares carry no rights as to
dividends, no rights to attend or vote at general meetings
and no rights to receive any surplus in a return of capital
in a winding-up (other than the nominal amount paid
up or credited as paid-up of the non-voting deferred
shares, after a sum of HK$1,000,000,000 per ordinary
share has been distributed to the holders of the ordinary
shares of Tak Shun Lam in such winding-up).

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at
the end of the Period or at any time during the Period.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company,
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the Period or formed a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

17.

MEBQRZFEE®)

MizEs : AR FE AR T R I A M R
BB 2R - L EIRE K
ERNE LREREEESEE
EEAEEPRDMAEMRBHRK
FHEBEREEEMNK)ETERK
ZEEAEREREBER S IR
1,000,000,000/% JT 2 3K B % *
Bl 7] Ue B 2 48k A BR 71 /R SR A%
R EEEEEER 2 EE)

I B A RN AN B AR R A ERE A
EABREEAEEZES

BEERR LRFAEINZRFAKER
Bl BAHIMEEBRNIEFENIEE
BEEFEZIED EFERR T
HEMMBARZHAENGSAXE
NI

INVENTORIES 18. &
30 June 31 December
2009 2008
—EERE —ETN\E
ANA=tTH +ZA=+-A
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (fEE%)
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Raw materials JRE 31,258 41,042
Work in progress EEm 11,342 11,339
Finished goods Bk & 39,304 44,105
81,904 96,486

Included in above, finished goods of approximately
HK$3,029,000 (31 December 2008: HK$4,467,000) are
carried at net realisable value.

LA B FE B R 493,029,000 T (=&
ENF+=ZA=+—H : 4,467,000
JC) AR EIRRETR -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 HE-_TZNFNA=Z1+HBIEXEA
19. TRADE RECEIVABLES 19. B E 5 R1E
30 June 31 December
2009 2008
—EEhE ZTENF
AAB=+H +ZA=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (fE&E%)
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FHEL
Trade receivables Y E SRE 121,433 169,000
Less: Impairment loss W EHERRERE
recognised (34,065) (61,137)
87,368 107,863

The Group normally allows credit terms ranging from 30
to 90 days to its customers.

An aging analysis of the trade receivables net of impairment
loss recognised as at the end of reporting period, based
on the date of recognition of the sale, is as follows:

S£H—RETEF0EIOAZEER -

BHEEERADAMIALNRERKRE
WE FEE (M ERHEEIE) 2k
BRoOWMT

30 June 31 December

2009 2008

—EEhE ZEENE

AA=TH +=ZA=+—H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(RBEX) (BE%)

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTET FHEL

1 - 30 days 1— 30H 35,306 52,019
31 - 60 days 31 — 60H 28,170 27,577
61 - 90 days 61 — 90H 13,470 17,498
Over 90 days 90H LA 10,422 10,769

87,368 107,863




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED e EHRRME
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 HE-_ZEZAFEAA=1THIE~EA

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 19. EWE S RIE (&)
In the opinion of directors, the Group has provided sufficient EFERA EECHZSECAHCE
impairment on those trade receivables which are past due. WESRBEARENARERE 2@
Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired relate HESRE L ERESRBYRZHN
to a number of independent customers that has a good SEHBRNRHBIEIREP - BRTK
track record with the Group. Based on past experience, B EREEREEARLSARIERE
management believes that no impairment allowance is BE REASEFHEEEEZRIEETANR
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not - BREESDESE AT E2ERE -
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances SEYER L EESRFTEEAERD

are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

The fair values of the Group’s trade receivables at 30 EER-_ZEENFAAA=ZTHZERE
June 2009 approximated to the corresponding carrying SEEBEZ A FEELEEREZEERE -
amounts.

20. AMOUNT DUE FROM NON-CONTROLLING 20. FE Uk 3k 2 I R 22 IR
INTERESTS

The amount due from non-controlling interests is JRE W5 3 128 ) 42 25 R IE /5 0k R AR 78 A R
compensation of shortfall from guarantee profit. The amount BREE - BERBERERT - ZFH
is unsecured, interest-bearing of 6.5% per annum and is ReLEFERAR-_ZEZENLF+—A
repayable on or before 29 November 2009. T MBS AIERE -

21. ASSETS/LIABILITIES OF DISPOSAL 21. 5 BB EHECHEER 2E

GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE E/afE

Disposal of the Group’s 67.7% interest in &% 2 5 /K I 54 | HEEEMEZ = T MEEERA
EERAR (“G&G Wood”). B[4z s ARHm])67.7% ez »

The assets and liabilities attributable to G&G Wood, which HraAtlREECEERBEERAR
is expected to be sold within twelve months after the end WERKEBETZEARAEE  ENEA
of reporting period, have been classified as subsidiary held- BIEHEWMB AR WRGEAMBRR
for-sales as are presented separately in the consolidated WEPBIZY -

statement of financial position.



21. ASSETS/LIABILITIES OF DISPOSAL
GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

(Continued)

Assets and liabilities of disposal group classified as held

for sale

&

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED e EHRRE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

1.5 AR EFHECHEEBCZE
- Y 4-1C )

DER/FBELEZHERB ZEERA

30 June 2009

—EEAFARA=ZTH

(Unaudited)

(REEZK)
HK’000
FHET
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB MEE 88,935
Prepayments, deposits and FERRIE - B REMEYFIE
other receivables 1,309
Cash and cash equivalents He kRS EMEEAEE 7
Amount due from immediate R E ZE R AR A
holding company 92,978
183,229
Less: Amount eliminated in o REREER B ¥
consolidation x| (92,978)
Assets of disposal group PEABEHEZHEER
classified as held for sale ZEE 90,251
Accounts payables ERNESKRIEA 3,401
Other payables and accruals L FE A SRIB K FE R SR IE 12,877
Accrual bank loans interest EETIRITERF B 12,052
Interest-bearing bank loans FTERITER
— due within one year —R—FREH 407,701
Liabilities of disposal group PEABFHEZHERR
classified as held for sale =L 436,031




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

22. TRADE PAYABLES

An aging analysis of the trade payables at the end of
reporting period, based on the receipt of goods purchased
is as follows:

22. BN E 5 IRE
RIBFIIEE 2 & iese BT 819 2 8
EHRERBSRAZRRANMT :

30 June 31 December

2009 2008

ZBENF —EENE

*<A=18A +=A=+-H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEERZ) (BE7)

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTERT FHET

1 - 30 days 1-30H 12,713 17,661
31 - 60 days 31 - 60H 10,138 11,360
61 - 90 days 61 - 90H 4,835 4,161
91 - 180 days 91 - 180H 1,854 2,750
Over 180 days 180H A k£ 5,893 7,549
35,433 43,481

The Group has financial risk management policies in place
to ensure that all payables within the credit timeframe. The
fair values of the Group’s trade payables at 30 June 2009
approximated to the corresponding carrying amounts, due
to their short-term maturities.

SEHOHEMBREEEEER - AER
PrERNFRIBEYEBLEESNR - AR
SEZENEZRAREHAZH - &
R_ZETENFRNA=ZTHZAFEER
HAAMRE 2 REE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 HE-_ZZAFNAZTHLAEA
23. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOAN 23. G ERITER
30 June 31 December
2009 2008
—EENE —EENE
AHA=tH +-A=+—8H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (fesi%)
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHxT THT
Unsecured bank loan HIRIRITER 407,701 406,780
Reclassified as liabilities of ENABEAVARELEZ
disposal group classified HEEBEZAE
as held for sales (407,701) -
Unsecured bank loan ERAETER = 406,780

The above amount bear interest at prevailing market rates
and are repayable as follows:

ERSBIDRBTMBHEREGTE - LA
RUATFHERE -

30 June 31 December

2009 2008

ZBENF ZTENF

AB=+H TZA=+—H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REBERZ) (gE=%)

HK$’000 HK$'000

THERT FET

Within one year —FR - 406,780




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

23.

24.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOAN (Continued)

The bank loan is floating-rate borrowing which carries
interest ranging from 4.5% to 6.3% (31 December 2008:
5.25% to 7.56% per annum).

The Group’s bank loan of HK$407,701,000 was re-classified
as liabilities of disposal group classified as held for sale
(31 December 2008: interest-bearing bank loan due within
one year HK$406,780,000). This bank loan is guaranteed
by a loan service provider, an independent third party. The
Group has given a corporate guarantee in favor of this loan
service provider in respect of this bank loan.

The directors consider that the carrying amount of bank
borrowings is approximated to their fair values.

The Group’s borrowing that is denominated in currencies
other the functional currencies of the relevant group entities
are set out below:

23.

FFEBITER®)
RITERYAZEEE BN T45%E
6.3% 2 FEFB(ZTEZENF+ A=
+—H : FFEE525%E7.56%) °

£E407,701,0008 L ( ZEZEN\F+=
A=+—H : R—FRNIH 2 BRTT
E3406,780,0008 L) ZRITTEREE
FoBRINARBREHEZEEEEZE
& WWHERITERHE —ZERREIE
HABBIE=7)RHER SEB
BMZRITEREEFRRB REAESL
—HEARER -

EERR/RITEEZREERALEAF
e

DA R E R 2 T B S M BASD 2 S
SIE EEEERFIMT :

30 June 31 December

2009 2008

—EEhE —ETN\EF

AAB=+H +ZA=+—H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(RBERZ) (mE%)

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREBTR ARBEFT

At the end of the period/year  HI#& /E#K - 360,000
PLEDGE OF ASSETS 24. EEEH

At the end of reporting period, none of property, plant
and equipment (31 December 2008: Nil) were pledged to
secure the Group’s banking facilities.

RBMERRETENE  BERREB(Z
EENFE+-A=+—RH: B)BEEAN
TEERBIERITRIE 2 -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

25. DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the major unprovided deferred tax
assets by the Group and movements thereon during the
Period/Year.

25. IR FE B IR

AT REERAMSEFRzEERE
REEHREERHEZS)

Difference

between

depreciation

and tax Estimated
allowances tax losses Total
FEEH fhEt
GBE2EE BsER #ar
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET
At 1 January 2008 (Audited) —R-TTN\F—A—H(KEEZ) (2186) 598 382
Movement for the year FREE (195) 37 (158)
At 31 December 2008 (Audited) R=EZN\F+=-A=+—H
(fEE%) (411) 635 224
Movement for the period HIN &) (197) 69 (128)
At 30 June 2009 (Unaudited) R-FTZAFA=1H
(RiEEE®%) (608) 704 96

The Group did not have any significant unprovided deferred
tax assets in respect of the Period (31 December 2008:
Nil).

SENANRE AL EEMNERREER
EREBEEE(CEENF T _A=1+—
B e



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. R4
Shares vy
Number of
shares Share capital
ROEE (&
HK$'000
FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each &M E(E0.018 T2 Li@Ak
Authorised: EE
At 1 January 2008, RZFEZENF—-A—RB - ZTZN\F
31 December 2008 and +-A=+—H &
30 June 2009 ZETNERA=1H 100,000,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRER
At 1 January 2008 (Audited) RZZZNEF—-R—-HEE%R) 17,629,928,600 176,299
Issue of new shares upon AT BRI TH ARG
exercise of options 44,150,000 442
Issue of new shares upon RITERREERFEITIRG
exercise of warrants 3,900,000 39
Issue of new shares upon RE R AR B R EITHAR G
conversion of convertible
note 5,774,320,550 57,743
At 31 December 2008 (Audited) RZZEENF+-A=+—H 283,452,299,150 234,523
(é%ﬁ)
Issue of placing shares (Note (a)) 377EC& WD (Kt (a)) 3,510,000,000 35,100
Issue of new shares upon %E@T%ﬁkﬁ%ﬁ%% TR
conversion of convertible (F33E (b))
note (Note (b)) 666,666,666 6,667
At 30 June 2009 (Unaudited) K-EThEXA=+H 27,628,965,816 276,290




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED e EHRRE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 BHE_ZZNFAAA=+HILEAR
26. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 26. BA& (&)

Notes: B 3E -

The movements in the ordinary share capital during the six months BEZZENFANA=ZtTHLEAEAZE®

period ended 30 June 2009 are as follows: AR AR E & -

(@) On 22 June 2009, the Company completed a top-up placing (@) MZZEZNFANAZ+ZH - RFEIRE
of 3,510,000,000 shares of the Company at a price of “EENFANAZHEBOTZBRRBEFK
HK$0.048 each under general mandate, which was granted FLHRBZAERRAIBRTESE . —BE
to the directors pursuant to the resolution passed by annual 7 TR A B 1R T 5 N iE B AR0.048
general meeting held on 3 June 2009. 78 T 2 B B & A §]3,510,000,000%

&5 °
(b) Convertible note holders had converted their convertible (b) FIRRFEFEACRKNEMAGE AR
notes into 666,666,666 ordinary shares during the Period. f% ZiE 85k 666,666,666 0% & @ -
27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 27. BIR#ETE
The following share options were outstanding under the RAERREA - RIBBRER S M ARITEE
Option Scheme during the Period: ZIBIRENT

Number of share options

BREHR
Date of Exercise
Name or Granted Exercised Lapsed grant price of
category of At 1 January during during during At 30 June  of share Exercise period share
participant 2009 the Period the Period the Period 2009  options of share options options
RZZENF RZZENE  RiE BRE
SRERLAER o BrekE  BREAE BrE AN AB=tH  RERH BRETEER B3
HK$
BT
Directors
gz
Lee Chi Kong - 200,000,000 - - 200,000,000 10/2/2009  10/2/2009 to 13/9/2011 0.058
R 10/2/20092 13/9/2011
Lam Ping Kei 20,000,000 - - - 20,000,000  3/3/2008  3/3/2008 to 13/9/2011 0.159
HTE 3/3/2008213/9/2011
Li Jun 75,000,000 - - (75,000,000) - 13/10/2007  15/10/2007 to 13/9/2011 0.194
35 15/10/2007£13/9/2011
20,000,000 - - (20,000,000) - 3/3/2008  3/3/2008 to 13/9/2011 0.159

3/3/2008%13/9/2011



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED e EHRRE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 HEZZZRF A SA=TAHIEAEA
27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 27. BIREST & ()
Number of share options
BREHR
Date of Exercise
Name or Granted Exercised Lapsed grant price of
category of At 1 January during during during At 30 June  of share Exercise period share
participant 2009 the Period the Period the Period 2009  options of share options options
RZ2ENF RZBEAE Rk BRE
SRERAGER -fA-H BremE  BREAE LIRPS ABZTH  RERE BRETEAR k8
HK$
BT
Directors (Continued)
gz (8
Jing Bin 75,000,000 - - - 75,000,000 13/10/2007 15/10/2007 to 13/9/2011 0.194
B 15/10/2007£13/9/2011
20,000,000 - - - 20,000,000  3/3/2008  3/3/2008 to 13/9/2011 0.159
3/3/2008£13/9/2011
- 100,000,000 - - 100,000,000 10/2/2009  10/2/2009 to 13/9/2011 0.058
10/2/2009%13/9/2011
Cheng Man For 50,000,000 - - - 50,000,000 13/10/2007 15/10/2007 to 13/9/2011 0.194
Ly e 15/10/2007213/9/2011
20,000,000 - - - 20,000,000  3/3/2008  3/3/2008 to 13/9/2011 0.159
3/3/2008Z 13/9/2011
- 100,000,000 - - 100,000,000 10/2/2009  10/2/2009 to 13/9/2011 0.058
10/2/2009Z 13/9/2011
Law Wai Fai 6,000,000 - - - 6,000,000  3/3/2008  3/3/2008 to 13/9/2011 0.159
BRE 3/3/2008%13/9/2011
- 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 10/2/2009  10/2/2009 to 13/9/2011 0.058
10/2/2009%13/9/2011
Consultants
El
In aggregate 875,000,000 - - - 875,000,000 13/10/2007 15/10/2007 to 13/9/2011 0.194
aif 15/10/2007%13/9/2011
344,000,000 - - - 344,000,000 3/3/2008  3/3/2008 to 13/9/2011 0.159
3/3/2008213/9/2011
6,000,000 - - - 6,000,000  3/3/2008  3/3/2009 to 13/9/2011 0.159
3/3/2009213/9/2011
6,000,000 - - - 6,000,000  3/3/2008  3/3/2010 to 13/9/2011 0.159
3/3/2010213/9/2011
- 598,000,000 - - 598,000,000 10/2/2009  10/2/2009 to 13/9/2011 0.058

10/2/2009%13/9/2011



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED e EHRRE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Number of share options

27. BRRESE (&)

BREHR
Date of Exercise
Name or Granted Exercised Lapsed grant price of
category of At 1 January during during during At 30 June  of share Exercise period share
participant 2009 the Period the Period the Period 2009  options of share options options
RZZENF RZZEnE BB BhE
SREREDER -fA-H BRERY  BRERE BrE AR AAZTE  RERH BREGEER  TEHE
HKS
BT
Employees
&
In aggregate 364,650 - - - 364,650  3/1/2006  24/1/2005 to 25/1/2010 0.05628
At 24/1/2006%25/1/2010
546,975 - - - 546,975 3/1/2005  24/1/2006 to 25/1/2010 0.05628
24/1/2006%25/1/2010
729,300 - - - 729,300  3/1/2005  24/1/2007 to 25/1/2010 0.05628
24/1/2007%25/1/2010
1,026,375 - - - 1,026,375 3/1/2005  24/1/2008 to 25/1/2010 0.05628
24/1/2008%£25/1/2010
50,321,700 - - - 50,321,700 31/1/2005  24/1/2009 to 25/1/2010 0.05628
24/1/2009%25/1/2010
75,000,000 - - (75,000,000) - 13/10/2007  15/10/2007 to 13/9/2011 0.194
15/10/2007£13/9/2011
71,600,000 - - (4,000,000) 67,600,000 3/3/2008  3/3/2008 to 13/9/2011 0.159
3/3/2008213/9/2011
53,700,000 - - (3,000,000) 50,700,000 3/3/2008  3/3/2009 to 13/9/2011 0.159
3/3/2009Z13/9/2011
53,700,000 - - (3,000,000) 50,700,000 3/3/2008  3/3/2010 to 13/9/2011 0.159
3/3/2010213/9/2011
1,823,989,000  1,000,000,000 - (180,000,000)  2,643,989,000




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

These fair value of the share options granted on 24 January
2005, 13 October 2007, 3 March 2008 and 10 February
2009 were calculated using the Black-Scholes pricing
model. The inputs into the model were at the respective
dates of grant of options as follows:

27. BRESE (&)

ZER_ZETZAF-AZ+TWMA - =F
Z+FFTA+=R  ZEZENF=ZA=
BRZZETZAFZA+HREZERE
ZRFEDBERAMAN R —FEE T8
BAETHE -REREBREER - Z
EERA 2 BABETIBRET :

24 January 13 October 3 March = 10 February

2005 2007 2008 2009

—ZETRE e oS —ETN\F “EENE

—AZ+mAH +A+=8 =A=H —A+H

Weighted average share price MEFHRE $0.31 $0.194 $0.156 $0.058
Exercise price TRE $0.342 $0.194 $0.159 $0.058
Expected volatility BETRE 41.94% 91.32% 78.35% 98%
Expected life (year) FEEEHR (F) 5 4 3.5 2.6
Risk-free rate Eadelirgilpd 4% 3.75% 1.17% 0.368%
Expected dividend yield AR EE 0% 0% 0% 0%
Employee exit rate pre-vesting FEAEEREE 10% N/A N/A N/A

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the previous period
prior to the date of grant of options. The expected life used
in the model has been adjusted, based on management’s
best estimate, for the effects of non transferability, exercise
restrictions and behavioral considerations.

The Group recognised the total expense of approximately
HK$23,616,000 for the six months ended 30 June 2009
(80 June 2008: HK$33,238,000) in relation to share options
granted by the Company.

At 30 June 2009, the Company had 2,643,989,000 share
options (30 June 2008: 1,823,989,000 share options)
outstanding under the Option Scheme. The exercise in
full of the outstanding share options would, under the
present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue
of 2,643,989,000 additional ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each of the Company and additional share capital of
HK$26,439,890 (30 June 2008: HK$18,239,890) and share
premium of approximately HK$322,511,331 (30 June 2008:
HK$306,581,331) (before share issue expenses).

AR E TR IBE A R R E R R R R
EARBE—EHEAZELKER
o FEEE  TERIRTREE
ME - REEEEZ&EMT - RAZ
B2 A2 BT FHOEHAE -

HE-_ZTZTHENA=Z+HLEAAEA -
SERATMBREERERR CBRAEZ
49/423,616,0008 t( —ZEZ N\F XA
=-+H :33,238,0007T) °

RZEBEZALFEFANAZ+H 271K
BERESSNRTECBRES
2,643,989,0000 ( —EZE NFE XA =
+ B :1,823,989,0001% ) & & 2
AIBERIZERNER  WEHKRITHEZ
BREEBHTERERINETAA
2,643,989,0000% & I E {E0.018 T 2
LB - WIRARE TR AR 25
HNRE AN26,439,8908 L ( —E T J\F X
B=-+H : 18,239,800/ jt ) & 17 &
E#9322,511,331 B L (ZEZN\F XA
=+ H :306,581,331/87L) (K3
TRHAX) -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED e EHRRE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 HE-_TZNFNA=Z1+BHIEXEA
28. CONVERTIBLE NOTE PAYABLE 28. ENAAR R
Pursuant to the acquisition of 70% interest in Green & RIBEMABEHEERAR(NES ] WE
Good from Superview International Limited (“Vendor”), the B EZT0%ER - AR BITAIRRE
Company issued convertible notes (the “Convertible Notes”) BT MR IR ) LA& 38 (0 Wi R
as partial settlement of the acquisition consideration. & o
The principal terms of the Convertible Notes are as ARBEBREZEEZEROT :
follows:
Date of issue 8 October 2007 EITHHE —ZEZT+F+ANA
Aggregate principal HK$929.7 million VNG R 929,700,000/ 7T
Amount denomination HK$10,000,000 EERBE 10,000,000/ 7T
In multiple of interest 1.0%, payable semi-annually F R % 1.0%  BERFFHE
rate per annum in arrears —IR
Conversion price applicable  HK$0.09 (Note), subject to HAKBKE 0.098 (M) (AT
adjustments FHEE)
Maturity date 2 years from the date EIE R EITHHRET R E
of issue
Note: Conversion price was adjusted from HK$0.45 to HK$0.09 Wik BREERR =T LHF+A++EH
for bonus issue of share on 17 October 2007. ZEBEITH AR R0.457 ;T # % £0.09%8
ﬁ o
The movement on the liability component of the Convertible AMRRRAGER D 2 EBHMT -

Notes as follows:

HK$’000
FHET
At 1 January 2008 (Audited) RZZENGE—A—RAKEEZR)

(as restated) (E75]) 568,781
Conversion of convertible note Sl s (467,634)
Interest expenses B 8,818
At 31 December 2008 (Audited) RIZZNE+-_A=+—-R(KER) 109,965
Conversion of convertible note BB RER (53,991)
Interest expenses FERZ 1,244
Reclassified as other payables ENHBEAEMENKERETER (MiEc)

and accruals (Note c) (11,362)

At 30 June 2009 (Unaudited) R-ZZNENA=1THCREER) 45,856




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

28. CONVERTIBLE NOTE PAYABLE (Continued)

Notes:
(a) Conversion period

Apart from the portion of Restricted Convertible Notes (as
described below), the holders of the Convertible Notes shall
have the rights at any time and from time to time, following
the date of issue of the Convertible Notes, to convert the
whole or any part of the outstanding principal amount into
new ordinary shares in the Company. The shares to be
issued and allotted upon conversion shall rank pari passu
in all respects among themselves and with all other ordinary
shares in issue by the Company on the date of such allotment
and issue.

(b) Restricted Convertible Note

As the profit guarantee cannot be fulfilled by Green & Good,
thus the restricted convertible notes of HK$300 million (the
“Restricted Convertible Notes”) were cancelled in satisfying
the profit guarantee given by the Vendor.

(c) It represent an accrued interest in which that convertible
note payable has already converted into share, Therefore,
the Group has reclassified such interest into other payables
and accruals.

29. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Exempt disclosed in note 283, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities at the end of reporting
period.

(a)

(b)

28. BB ERE &)
Hiat:

g

BARG A TRBRREGER T X0
Sh - ATMRR BB A AR REABRRE
1REEIT B R EE R XS 2 B0 sk
Bz EREEREERASELBRRAR
MEBEE - REBMEETEITRE#RZ
BB EMBAES S RERGRE R
BUOERRARZMARMBDHITERR
ZHEREMWN -

BRBITRRRE

B2 B REERREFRE - A S
% /£300,000,0007% 7T 2 A PR & 7] #2 f%
ZR((BRHITRKRER ]S Pk
UM R E 1B 2@ FRE o

EEEBRKRD 2 BN ATRRREZE
At o Bt KRESZSESEND
BREMEMN KA RER A -

CBAREE

BRBIFE23PT IR EE SN - RERN | EMK
TEREFMEAKAEE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

30. OPERATING LEASE

The Group as leasee

The Group leases certain leasehold land and buildings under
operating lease. The original lease terms for these leasehold
land and buildings ranged from eighteen to twenty years.

At 30 June 2009, the Group had commitment for future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases falling due as follows:

30. &AL
SEMEREBA
SERBEEEHOEEETHEI R
BF - ZEHEIHEEFZREEL
FHNF18FF204F o

RZZEZNFARA=ZTH SER TS
FHAER 2 NI REEEBEOZRK
BEESMFEENT

30 June 31 December

2009 2008

—EEhE ZTENF

AA=1+H +=-A=+—H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REBERK) (BE%)

HK$’000 HK$'000

THExT FHET

Within one year —FA 2,927 2,801
In the second to fifth years, E_RENF(BEEEMSE)

inclusive 12,968 5,561

Over five years BARF 17,842 14,386

33,737 22,748

The Company did not have any operating lease arrangements
as at 30 June 2009 (31 December 2008: Nil).

RIZBZNFRA=1TH  RATEE
MEEROLHE(ZTEENF+ A=
TR &) -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

30. OPERATING LEASE (continued)
The Group as lessor

Rental income earned during the Period was HK$132,000.
The Group’s plant and machinery held for rental purposes,
with a carrying amount of HK$60,963,000 at the end of
reporting period. The plant and machinery are expected
to generate rental yields of 2% on an ongoing basis. All
of the plant and machinery held have committed tenants
for five years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted
with tenants for the following future minimum lease

30.

KERN @)

SEEREBEA

A B BB 2 7 £ WA B 132,000/%
T EEBERERSR ZWE kSR
w5 MR 2 BRTE (B 4£60,963,000/%8 7T °
TREARE KB FERNC% 2 HE
Was - FRsfTE 2 MERKRFHE AR

FHEMEMEE -

i

534

>

: SERFFIVLBEHZRK
REREESHKOT :

payments:
30 June 31 December
2009 2008
ZBENF —EENE
AB=+H +=-A=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REERZ) (&%)
HK$°000 HK$'000
THERT TET
Within one year —FR 741 -
In the second to fifth F_EEAF(BREEEMT)
year, inclusive 728 -

1,469




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

31. COMMITMENTS 31. &
(a) The Group had the following commitments in respect () FEERBHEARTEME  BEK
of its property, plant and equipment as at the end of R AIENT
reporting period:
30 June 31 December
2009 2008
ZBENF ZETNF
AA=1H +=ZA=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REBER) (g&%)
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET THET
Contracted for, but not provided in: EHENER S T
Leasehold land and buildings HELHREF 14,580 12,155

(b) At 30 June 2009, the Group did not have contracted
commitments in respect of capital investments in the PRC
subsidiaries. (31 December 2008: HK$90,743,000).

32. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

The following events occurred subsequent to 30 June 2009
up to the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements by the Board of Directors:

(i)  Shares Consolidation

On 14 September 2009, the Company announced
that the Board proposed (i) to implement the Share
Consolidation on the basis that every ten (10) issued and
unissued shares of HK$0.01 each will be consolidated
into one (1) Consolidated Share of HK$0.10. An
extraordinary general meeting will be held on 22
October 2009 for the purpose of considering and
approving the ordinary resolution by way of poll in
respect of the Share Consolidation.

b) RZZZTAFEXA=+H £@IF
BREERTPEAMBARZELREE
ZEIHEE(ZEENFE+ A=
+—H 90,743,000/ L) °

32. £EREEHE
UTAR-EEAFEAA-+AZER
EEEESELSRAMEERE YA
HRS T Y B IR

() BR1GHE G
RZZEZAFNLATHE F RAE
i BEEFEB(VETRHAEI
AEEAFTA0O)KREREE0.01/5
L2 BBITRABITRMDEE A
—()REEA010B T Z A H IR
B RAIBHR -_ZETAFTA-+
ZHEBHARERFAIRE  UAEZER
BERERAFHAEFTERO A2

BRRESR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

32. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS (Continued)

(i) Proposed Transactions

On 10 July 2009, the Board announced that the
Company and Superview entered into the conditional
share transfer agreement in respect of, among other
matters, (1) acquisition by the Company of 30%
shares in Green & Good Group Limited from Superview
(“Acquisition”); (2) disposal by Leeka Wood, an indirect
non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, of its
67.7% equity interests in G&G Wood to Superview;
and (3) to procure release of the respective counter
guarantee obligations of Leeka Wood and G&G
Wood under the counter guarantee agreements by
Superview. The respective considerations for the
above transactions are:

(1) The consideration for the Acquisition is equivalent
to a discount of 16% to the interests to be acquired
(i.e. 30% of the audited net consolidated asset
value of Green & Good including Leeka Wood
and G&G Wood as at 30 June 2009) (“Acquisition
Consideration”). The Acquisition Consideration was
estimated to be not more than HK$850 million and
the Company is entitled to set off the Outstanding
Shortfall (i.e. principal amount of HK$325,111,000
plus interest) owed by Superview to the Company
against the Acquisition Consideration and the
remaining balance will be settled by issuance of
Convertible Notes (A) with conversion price of
HK$0.05 by the Company to Superview on the
Completion Date.

32. FEHEEHE)

(i) B#ER 5

RZZZNAF+A+AH ==
i RRIEBER (AP EE)(1)A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

32. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS (Continued)
(ii)  Proposed Transactions (Continued)

@)

The consideration for the Disposal is equivalent
to 67.7% of the audited net asset value of G&G
Wood as at 30 June 2009 excluding its Bank
Loan and the interest accrued thereon (“Disposal
Consideration”), which was estimated to be in
a range from HK$120 million to HK$180 million
and is payable by Superview to Leeka Wood in
cash within 90 days after the Completion Date. If
Superview cannot pay the Disposal Consideration
in whole or in part, the Company will not deliver
the part of Convertible Notes (B) that is equivalent
to the amount unpaid and that part of Convertible
Notes (B) will be cancelled.

The consideration for the Release of counter
guarantees is equivalent to 90% of the aggregate
of the principal amount of the Bank Loan and
interest accrued thereon up to the Completion Date
(“Release Consideration”), which was estimated
to be not more than HK$391.10 million of which
HK$381,849,639, will be satisfied by way of the
issue of Convertible Notes (B) with conversion price
of HK$0.05 and the remaining balance, being the
accrued interest from the date of the conditional
share transfer agreement up to Completion date,
will be payable by the Company to Superview in
cash.

32. FEHEEHE)

(i) &
@)

BEXS(E)

HEFE RESERZZE
REBAR_ZETAFANAZ
TEZEEZEEFE(TE
FERITER LA EEF
B)z67.7% ([HERE]) -
HET 1 F120,000,000% 7T E
180,000,000/ ¢ * B HEE
RER B E5908 MAIR &
M2 BZAREZS - BBET
X NEEAHAHERE -
AR ERNERALIFE
BH2ARREERB)E S - m
ZE D 2 TR E B
84 o

R RERZREMBENR
TERAR© B 5FEI0% K &
EEKABMZIEBEREFE
(IT@BBERED)  #eT%
391,100,000 £ - H &
381,849,639/ L% i i IR 2
BRBO.OSEB L ETAI KRR
BB - (BB B BKH
R et A AR = =K A
HIE 2 BRI B) & m AR
REXTFiEE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

33. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies
which are described in note 3, management has made
the following judgments that have significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements. The key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of reporting period, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
also discussed below.

Impairment loss recognised in respect of trade
and other receivables

The policy for impairment loss recognised in respect of
trade and other receivables of the Group is based on the
evaluation of collectability and aging analysis of accounts
and on management’s judgment. A considerable amount of
judgment is required in assessing the ultimate realisation of
these receivables, including the current creditworthiness and
the past collection history of each customer. If the financial
conditions of customers of the Group were to deteriorate,
resulting in impairment of their ability to make payments,
additional impairment loss may be required.

Write-down of inventories to net realisable
value

The management of the Group reviews an aging analysis at
each reporting period, and makes provision for obsolete and
slow-moving inventory items identified. The management
estimates the net realisable value for such inventories
based primarily on the latest invoice prices and current
market conditions. The Group carries out an inventory
review at each reporting period and makes provision for
obsolete items.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

33.

34.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Management tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated
in note 3. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units
have been determined based on value-in-use calculations.
These calculations require the use of estimates.

Fair values of biological assets

Management estimates at the end of reporting period
that the fair values less estimated point-of-sale costs of
biological assets of paper mulberry trees and pine trees
with reference to market prices and professional valuations.
Management considers that these are presently an absence
of effective financial instruments for hedging against the
pricing risks with the underlying agricultural produce.
Un-anticipated volatile changes in market prices of the
underlying agricultural produce could significantly affect the
fair values of these biological assets and result in fair value
re-measurement losses in future accounting periods.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Company
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising
the return to stakeholders through optimisation of the debt
and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and
cash equivalents and equity attributable to the owners
of the Company, comprising issued share capital and
reserves. The directors of the Company review the capital
structure on a regular basis. As a part of this review, the
directors of the Company consider the cost of capital and
the associated risks and take appropriate actions to adjust
the Company’s capital structure. The overall strategy of the
Company remained unchanged for the six months ended
30 June 2009 and year ended 31 December 2008.

33.

34.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

35. FINANCIAL RISKMANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
receivables, other receivables, cash and cash equivalents,
amount due form non-controlling interests, trade payables,
other payables, interest-bearing bank loans and convertible
note payable. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(a) Credit risks

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the
event of the counterparties’ failure to perform their
obligations as at 30 June 2009 in relation to each
class of recognised financial assets is the carrying
amount of those assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The Group manages its
exposure to credit risk through continual monitoring
of the credit quality of its customers, taking into
account their financial position, collection history, past
experience and other relevant factors. In addition, the
Group reviews regularly the recoverable amount of each
individual trade receivables to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In this regard, the directors of the Company consider
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

(b) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets, the Group’s income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates.

The Group’s interest-rate risk arises from long-term
borrowings. The Group does not have policy to maintain
a specific level of its borrowings in fixed rate instruments
since the board accepts that this neither protects the
Group entirely from the risk of paying rates in excess
of current market rates nor eliminates fully cash flow
risk associated with interest payments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

35. FINANCIAL RISKMANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Foreign exchange risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures,
primarily with respect to Renminbi for the six months
ended 30 June 2009. Such exposures arise from
provision of service income in currencies other than
the Group’s functional currency. All of the Group’s
sales are denominated in Hong Kong Dollar, United
States Dollar and Renminbi for the six months ended
30 June 2009.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
foreign exchange exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise.

The Group conducts its business transactions principally
on Hong Kong Dollar, United States Dollar and
Renminbi. The exchange rate risk of the Group is
not significant.

(d) Natural risk

The Group’s revenue depends significantly on the
ability to harvest wood at adequate levels. The ability
to harvest wood in the concessions and the growth
of the trees in the plantations may be affected by
unfavorable local weather conditions and natural
disasters. Weather conditions such as floods, droughts,
cyclones and windstorms and natural disasters such
as earthquakes, fire, disease, insect infestation and
pests are examples of such events. The occurrence
of severe weather conditions or natural disasters may
diminish the supply of trees available for harvesting
in the concessions, or otherwise impede the Group’s
logging operations or the growth of the trees in the
plantations, which in turn may have a material adverse
effect on the Group’s ability to produce the products
in sufficient quantities and in a timely manner.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

35. FINANCIAL RISKMANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Natural risk (Continued)

Moreover, bad weather may adversely affect the
condition of the Group ‘s transportation infrastructure,
which is critical for the Group to supply timber from
the timber concessions to the Group’s manufacturing
plants and customers. The Group has developed a
strategy for utilizing different transportation modes and
stockpiling, but its daily operations may be unfavorably
affected by interruption of transportation due to bad
weather or other reasons.

(e) Liquidity risk
Regarding the present policy in the management
of the liquidity risk, the Company monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance
the Company’s operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows.

The following table details the Company’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. For non-
derivative financial liabilities, the table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities and based on the earliest date on which the
Company is required to pay. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows.

Internally generated cash flow and bank loans are the
general sources of funds to finance the operations
of the Group. The Group liquidity risk management
includes making available standby banking facilities and
diversifying the funding sources. The Group regularly
reviews its major funding positions to ensure it has
adequate financial resources in meeting its financial
obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED e EHRRME
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 H=Z

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 5. ¢EREEEERBE &)

AND POLICIES (Continued)

(e) Liquidity risk (Continued) (e) REBVESR (&)

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and marketable securities, the available
of funding through an adequate amount of committed
credit facilities and the ability to close our market
positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying
business, the Group aims to maintain flexibility in
funding by keeping committed credit lines available.

EZERDECAREEBERFR
RREMAHEERS BBO AR
EEREZEHSRERTSHAE
EUARRAEE TS ZEEN °
MR EREB ERILE - SEK
HRBAIHAZEAEEE - #IA
MEBESHEZTEMN -

Undiscounted Carrying
cash flows amounts at
Within 1 within 30 June
year 6 months 2009
RAEAR R=ZBEREF
RTR AB=+HAZ
R—FR BeRE REE
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REgERZ) (REEER) (REEER)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FET FET
2009 —EENE
Non-derivative ¥TESRER
financial liabilities
Trade payables ENE KA 35,433 35,433 35,433
Other payables and E hfE 5008 R BT RIA
accruals 205,950 205,950 205,950
Convertible note payable &+ A # % Z 5 50,135 45,856 45,856
291,518 287,239 287,239




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED e EHRRME
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2009 BE—ZTAEAA=TBILNEA

35.

36.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 5. ¢EREEEERBE &)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are SREENSRBEATEEELOT
determined as follows:

30 June 2009

—EEhE
ANA=t1H
(Unaudited)
REER
HK$’000
FEx

Financial assets SHEE
Other receivables H B W58 31,399
Trade receivables B E 5818 87,368
Cash and cash equivalents RekHLEEER 222,010
Amount due from non-controlling interests FEUTIE 1 I i 22 7R 1B 326,385
667,162

Financial liabilities cHEeE
Trade payables ENE KA 35,433
Other payables and accruals Ho A 8 R IE S B R R 205,950
Tax payables JERT R IE 36,330
Convertible note payable FEAS Rl A R i 45,856
323,569

COMPARATIVE FIGURES 36. LEBHF

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to ATHFEET»AUFAAEHZ2

conform with current period presentation. B e



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in (i) exploitation and management
of timber resources in the PRC; (ii) research and development,
processing, manufacturing, distribution, marketing and sales
of a wide range of timber products and (iii) manufacturing and
sales of electronic calculators and other electronic products
and liquid crystal display units.

During the Period, the Group recorded turnover of approximately
HK$188.6 million, down 28.8% compared with approximately
HK$265.0 million in corresponding period last year. The decrease
in turnover was mainly attributable to the decrease in sales of
timber log and wood products. The Group’s net profit attributable
to shareholders was HK$214.2 million in contrast to net loss
of HK$65.5 million in corresponding period last year. During
the Period, the Group had recognized share option expenses
of approximately HK$23.6 million. For the timber business, it
had recorded a profit of approximately HK$361.2 million during
the Period mainly due to a gain in fair value of approximately
HK$330.8 million for biological assets was recognised. In
addition, due to the general economic downturn, the Group had
continue to scale down its production during the Period, the
Group’s electronic business had incurred a loss of approximately
HK$7.9 million.

The Group’s gross profit during the Period recorded approximately
HK$12.9 million (2008: approximately HK$42.5 million), down
69.6% compared with corresponding period last year. Gross profit
margin had decreased to 6.8% (2008: 16.0%). The decrease
in gross profit margin was mainly due to the sharp decline of
revenue from timber business, which has higher profit margin
compared to the Group’s electronic products.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

TIMBER BUSINESS

During the Period, the Group has recorded a segment turnover
of approximately HK$1.7 million, accounting for approximately
0.9% of the Group’s turnover (2008: HK$58.8 million or 22.2%
of the Group’s turnover), which was all from the sales of floor
board products. The gross loss for timber business during the
Period recorded approximately HK$4.8 million (2008: profit of
HK$26.1 million). Decline in turnover was due to the timber
operation did not record revenue from timber logging during
the Period. No timber logging was arranged during the Period
in view of highly volatile price fluctuation of the timber as the
timber market was very unstable under the global economic
downturn during the Period. Operating result during the Period for
the timber business segment recorded a profit of approximately
HK$361.2 million (2008: loss of HK$3.1 million), which mainly
due to a gain in fair value of approximately HK$330.8 million
(2008: Nil) was recognised.

ELECTRONIC PRODUCTS BUSINESS
Electronic Calculators

During the Period, the sales of electronic calculators recorded
approximately HK$105.7 million or approximately 56.0% of the
Group’s total turnover. (2008: sales of approximately HK$107.9
million or 40.7% of the Group’s total turnover). The decrease is
mainly due to scale down of production during the Period.

Other Consumer Electronic Products

The sales of multifunctional water resistance watches and
household telephones recorded approximately HK$23.4 million
and approximately HK$26.5 million respectively during the
Period, contributing 12.4% and 14.1% of the Group’s turnover
(2008: sales of multifunctional water resistance watches and
household telephones were approximately HK$28.1 million
and HK$26.3 million respectively, or 10.6% and 9.9% of the
Group’s turnover). The decrease is mainly due to scale down
of production during the Period.

Liquid Crystal Display (“LCD”)

During the Period, the sale of LCD recorded HK$18.9 million
or 10% of the Group’s total turnover (2008: sales of HK$21.0
million or 7.9% of the Group’s total turnover). Due to the
economic downturn, the demand for industrial products was
largely reduced during the Period,
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

Corporate Development

The Group had worked closely with the Research Institute of
Wood Industry of the Chinese Academy of Forestry to conduct
the “Study of Standardization in the Timber Trading in China”
from last year, in an effort to explore the feasibility of developing
nation-wide electronic timber trading platform for timber industry
that might solve the existing problems in the transaction flow
such as over reliance on spot transaction, too many processes
involved, high transaction cost and low transaction volume,
etc. The Group had already gained the approval of the National
Timber Industry Administration Office to establish the first timber
electronic trading platform in China.

During the Period, the Group’s electronic products business
had incurred a loss due to worldwide economic downturn.
The Group had implemented varies measures such as raising
selling price, controlling of production cost and scaling down
of production by concentrating on high profit margin products
etc., The Group will continue to control the production costs
and other implement appropriate measures to improve the
production efficiency and profitability.

Employees and Remuneration Package

As at 30 June 2009, the Group had approximately 3,500
employees (30 June 2008: approximately 4,500 employees). The
remuneration package was based on their work performance,
experience and the industry practice. The Group also participated
in retirement benefits schemes for its staff in Hong Kong and
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

Capital Expenditures

During the period, the Group spent approximately HK$9.8
million (2008: HK$10.6 million) on acquisition of new production
machines, which was financed by internal cash resources.

Contingent liabilities

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities at
30 June 2009 (31 December 2008: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Liquidity and Finance Resources

During the Period, the Group generally financed its operations
with internally generated resources and banking facilities
provided by its principal bankers in Hong Kong and PRC. As at
30 June 2009, the Group had approximately HK$407.7 million
interest-bearing bank borrowings (31 December 2008: HK$406.8
million), which was floating interest bearing and denominated
in Renminbi with maturity within one year. The Group’s banking
facilities were secured by corporate guarantees given by certain
subsidiaries of the Company.

As at 30 June 2009, the Group’s bank borrowings were
denominated in Renminbi. The Group’s sales and purchases
were either denominated in Renminbi, Hong Kong and US
dollars. Accordingly, the Directors consider the Group has no
significant exposure to foreign exchange fluctuations in view
of the stability of the exchange rates of Renminbi, Hong Kong
and US dollars. During the Period, the Group did not use any
financial instrument for hedging the foreign exchange risk.

As at 30 June 2009, the Group had current assets of approximately
HK$881.1 million (31 December 2008: HK$659.6 million)
and current liabilities of approximately HK$759.6 million (31
December 2008: HK$788.6 million). The Group’s current ratio
had increased from approximately 0.8 times as at 31 December
2008 to 1.2 times as at 30 June 2009. The Group had total
assets of approximately HK$4,664.7 million (31 December 2008:
HK$4,122.2 million) and total liabilities of approximately HK$759.6
million (31 December 2008: HK$788.6 million), representing a
gearing ratio (expressed as total liabilities to total assets) of
approximately 16.3% as at 30 June 2009 as compared with
approximately 19.1% as at 31 December 2008.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

PROSPECTS

The Group endeavors to drive the electronic development and
standardization of the timber trading market in China. Upon
obtaining the approval from the National Timber Industry
Administration Office to establish the first nationwide timber
electronic trading market, the Group has been actively cooperating
with various representative regional timber markets in China to
establish the regional timber exchange and timber regulatory
warehouse to create synergies. The Group successively entered
into cooperation agreements with Manzhouli Economic Cooperation
Zone Commission (/M B4 EZ 84) and Shanghai Donghua
Global Timber and Building Materials Trading Market Business
Management Limited (E/8REFERHAEZEM TGN ELEE
EHRAF]) to jointly establish a local timber exchange. The
first timber electronic trading center was officially established
in Manzhouli as the largest timber trading port in China on 18
August 2009. Looking forward, as various timber exchanges
are established nationwide, the Group is able to regulate the
management, integrate timber reserves, inventory and other
resources in the course of the logistics of timber products
through the electronic intranet, so as to drive the development
of the electronic transaction in the timber industry and facilitate
the transition from physical to online development of timber
transaction.

For the electronic manufacturing business, the Group will continue
to implement various measures to control the production cost
in achieving the aim of improving the production efficiency
and profitability. Furthermore, the Group will closely monitor
the condition of electronic consumer products to sieze new
market opportunities.
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DISCLOSURE OF ADDITIONAL
INFORMATION

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES

As at 30 June 2009, the interests of the directors and chief
executives of the Company in the shares of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”), as recorded in
the register kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO or otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Companies were as follows:

Long position

(a) Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the
Company
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Number of Percentage of
issued the issued
Name of Directors Capacity shares held share capital
R7EE HERT
EERE 14 e 1T RAEBSDE
Lee Chi Kong Beneficial owner 1,650,000 0.01%
2 BB A
Lee Chi Kong Held by controlled 329,120,000 1.19%
il corporation (Note)
MREREERE (M)

330,770,000 1.20%

Note: Hiat -

These ordinary shares are owned by Huge Healthy Investment
Development Limited (“Huge Healthy”), a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”). The entire issued share
capital of Huge Healthy is beneficially owned by Mr. Lee Chi Kong,
the Chairman of the Company.
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DISCLOSURE OF ADDITIONAL
INFORMATION

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES (Continued)

(b) Share options

HibE R 2T

EERRO2ESIRRB(E

(b) FEAHE

Number of Percentage of

underlying the issued

Name of Directors Capacity shares share capital

HHE HE 81T

BEEnE 54 ROEHA RAET D

Lee Chi Kong Beneficial owner 200,000,000 0.72%
2 EmiiB A

Jing Bin Beneficial owner 195,000,000 0.71%
A EmEAA

Cheng Man For Beneficial owner 170,000,000 0.62%
xRy BEmEA A

Law Wai Fai Beneficial owner 8,000,000 0.03%
EENE EmfEAA

Save as disclosed above, none of the other directors, chief
executives and their associates, had any interest or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as at 30 June 2009.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Saved as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ interests or
short positions in shares” above, at no time during the period
were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any director
or their respective spouse or minor children, or were any such
rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors
to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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DISCLOSURE OF ADDITIONAL
INFORMATION

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 30 June 2009, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO shows that other than the interests disclosed above in
respect of certain directors and chief executives, the following
shareholders had notified the Company of the relevant interests
in the issued share capital of the Company.

Long positions
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company
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TERR
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Number of
issued Percentage
Number underlying of the
of issued shares issued share
ordinary (convertible capital of
Name of shareholder Capacity shares held notes) held the Company
R &17 (NG|
e &7 HEEAR M (TR 28T
RERER ) ZERHE EE 9k =] RAEB DL
Super Giant Assets Beneficial owner 3,510,000,000 - 12.70%

Limited (Note) BEmEAA

Super Giant Assets

Limited (M%)

Note:

These ordinary shares are owned by Super Giant Assets Limited (“Super
Giant”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”).
The entire issued share capital of Super Giant is beneficially owned by
Mr. Lam Ping Kei.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not been
notified of any other interests or short position in the issued
share capital of the Company as at 30 June 2009.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities for
the six months ended 30 June 2009.

et
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DISCLOSURE OF ADDITIONAL
INFORMATION

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14
of the Listing Rules throughout the six months ended 30 June
2009, with deviations from code provisions A.4.1 of the Code
in respect of term of office of non-executive directors.

Code provision A.4.1 requires that non-executive directors should
be appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election.

Currently, all independent non-executive directors, except for
Mr. Zhu Guang Qian who was appointed for a specific term of
one year, have not been appointed for a specific term of office
with the Company. All independent non-executive directors
are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the
Articles of Association. As such, the Company considers that
sufficient measures have been taken to serve the purpose of
this code provision.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors by Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Upon enquiries by
the Company, all Directors of the Company have confirmed that
they have complied with the required standards set out in the
Model Code throughout the six months ended 30 June 2009.
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DISCLOSURE OF ADDITIONAL
INFORMATION

AUDIT COMMITTEE REVIEW

The Company has an Audit Committee which was established
for the purposes of reviewing and providing supervision over
the Group’s financial reporting process and internal controls.
The Audit Committee comprises the three independent non-
executive directors of the Company.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management the
accounting principles and policies adopted by the Group and
the unaudited interim financial reports for the six months ended
30 June 2009.

On behalf of the Board
Lee Chi Kong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 September 2009
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors
LEE Chi Kong (Chairman)
JING Bin (Chief Executive Officer)

LAW Wai Fai
CHENG Man For

Independent Non-executive Directors

CHAN Chi Yuen
WONG Yun Kuen
ZHU Guang Qian

MEMBERS OF AUDIT COMMITTEE

CHAN Chi Yuen
WONG Yun Kuen
ZHU Guang Qian

MEMBERS OF REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

CHAN Chi Yuen
WONG Yun Kuen
ZHU Guang Qian

MEMBERS OF NOMINATION COMMITTEE

CHAN Chi Yuen
WONG Yun Kuen
ZHU Guang Qian

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS

Units 2804-2806, 28th Floor

China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre,

168-200 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

COMPANY SECRETARY
CHENG Man For

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
Hong Kong

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
Chiyu Banking Corporation Limited

The PRC

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
China Construction Bank

Agricultural Bank of China

Beijing Rural Commercial Bank

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Bank of Bermuda (Cayman) Limited
P.O. Box 513 GT, Strathvale House
North Church Street, George Town
Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands
British West Indies

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Tengis Limited
26/F Tesbury Centre
28 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong

AUDITORS

Lo and Kwong C.P.A. Company Limited
Suite 216-218, 2/F, Shui On Centre,
6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai

Hong Kong

STOCK CODE
01228

WEBSITE

www.takshun.com.hk
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